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Financial Highlights

2014 2013
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HK$ million HK$ million

BEBERT BEAT

Revenue WA 465.3 419.5
Profit attributable to owners of AR &#E A A BTG 5% F)

the Company 10.5 26.0
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Equity Em 252.2 255.0

Basic earnings per share BRERER 3.94 centsiEfll  9.75 centsE Ll
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with the
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group turnover for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$465.3 million representing an 10.9% increase
from the previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$74.8 million this year representing an 2.4% increase from the
previous year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$10.5 million (2013: HK$26.0 million).

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK3.94 cents (2013: HK9.75 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Benefited from the increasing demand of the major customers, along
with the business came from the newly established customers, the
turnover of the precision parts and components segment in 2014
increased by 18.3% to approximately HK$361.5 million. The operating
profit increased by 19.7% to approximately HK$23.2 million. This
included the loss of approximately HK$1.5 million from the derivative
financial instruments purchased to manage the impact of appreciation
of Renminbi needed for the operating expenses of our factories in
Mainland China.

Due to the continuous weakened demand from the market, the
turnover of the consumer electronic products segment dropped by
8.9% to approximately HK$103.7 million. Because of the change of
product mix and the increase in manufacturing costs, the segment
had turned from a gain into loss of approximately HK$9.4 million.
This included the loss of approximately HK$0.4 million from the
derivative financial instruments purchased to manage the impact of
appreciation of Renminbi needed for the operating expenses of our
factory in Mainland China.

Due to the uncertainty in the market and the high volatility of Renminbi
exchange rate, the Group has decided to temporarily stop utilising the
derivative financial instrument to manage the impact of appreciation
of Renminbi needed for the operating expenses.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In 2014, the Group continued to record growth in business. The
increase from the precision parts and components segment offset the
decrease in business from the consumer electronic products segment.
The rise in production costs and the operating loss in the consumer
electronic products segment had driven the gross profit margin down
by 1.3% to 16.1%. The selling and distribution costs increased by
3.3% to approximately HK$33.6 million and administrative expenses
also increased by 3.0% to approximately HK$33.2 million. Due to the
increase in debts financing, the finance costs had increased by 41.6%
to approximately HK$1.4 million.

Cash and cash equivalents for the Group at the end of reporting
period were approximately HK$35.3 million. The outstanding bank
borrowings and finance lease payables was HK$47.4 million. The
shareholders’ equity of the Group at the end of reporting period was
approximately HK$252.2 million (2013: HK$255.0 million).

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Due to the increasing dominance of smartphones as an important
personal electronics tool, the consumer electronic products segment
will continue to face stiff challenge. The precision parts and components
segment has successfully expanded the customer network in the past
two years and continues to achieve steady growth in business. In
order to fulfill customer needs, the Group had invested approximately
HK$38.6 million for the installation of new machines, equipment
and facilities in the production of precision parts and components
segment to enhance the production capability and efficiency. The
investment was financed by internal resources and bank and other
borrowings. The Group's financial position remains healthy, and is
strong enough to finance its daily operation and invest to expand
the business if needed. We can expect that the production costs in
Mainland China will continue to rise and the production workers
will be in shortage. Therefore, we will actively research and invest in
production automation to increase production capability and improve
profitability. In the coming year, we are still facing many uncertainties
and will be very cautious but optimistic in our business.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board of directors,
management team and all our staff for their contribution, and also
thank for the support of our shareholders and business partners over
the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2014.

o Turnover increased by 10.9% from the prior year to approximately
HK$465.3 million for the year.

o Gross profit increased by HK$1.8 million from 2013 to
approximately HK$74.8 million in 2014.

o Profit from operating activities before finance costs was
approximately HK$13.0 million, a decrease of HK$11.7 million
from the last financial year.

o Finance costs increased by HK$0.4 million from last year to
approximately HK$1.4 million.

o Profit after tax for the year was approximately HK$10.5 million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and components
segment has increased by approximately 18.3% as compared with the
previous financial year. Turnover of the consumer electronic products
segment has decreased by approximately 8.9% as compared with
the prior year.

The Group’s overall gross profit has increased by approximately 2.4%
from the previous year.

The Group’s finance costs have increased to approximately HK$1.4
million for the year due to the increase in borrowings from banks and
other financial institution.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal bankers and other
financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks and other financial institution
include all term loans, finance leases, import and export loans, which
amounted to approximately HK$47.4 million as at 31 December 2014.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$35.3 million.
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BERE W&

Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The Group’s borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts its
business.

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total capital
plus net debt as at 31 December 2014 is 29.8% (2013: 22.0%).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s machines and equipment with
carrying amount of approximately HK$35.5 million (2013: HK$6.7
million) were pledged under finance leases.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for corporate guarantees given to banks and other financial
institution in relation to loan facilities granted to the subsidiaries, the
Company had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$252.2 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group’s
trading requirements and finance leases to finance the acquisition of
machines and equipment, the Group did not have any fund raising
activities in 2014.
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BERE W&

Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 2,111 of which approximately 59 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based overseas and approximately 2,047
were based in Mainland China.

The Group remunerates its employees largely based on the prevailing
industry practice and labour laws. Since December 1996, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees of the Group.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all its Hong Kong
employees. For overseas and Mainland China employees, the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board of the Company believes that corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and has adopted various
measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is
maintained. The Company has applied the principles as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) and regularly
reviews its corporate governance codes to ensure compliance with the
CG Code. In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014, except for the deviation in respect of
the separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.
Considered reasons are provided in the section of chairman and chief
executive officer.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Leung Man Kay
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The overall management
of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to
the executive directors. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s
overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders. These include
financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policy, the annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, risk management strategies, treasury policies and group
structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of director’s liability.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING EES2EZRRIRBEARS
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance SERYEREEHELHE
During the year ended 31 December 2014, four regular board meetings #HZE_-_Z—WNE+_A=+—HItFERX

SR RTUATHEE  OBFELET
L‘Aﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁt?&$%2ﬁ!ﬂ%&%&%i‘%ﬁ i

were held at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company and ZENEHERNR ZRBERE R E DS
one annual general meeting was held. The attendance record of each —RERBFRE - SEFE 2 M FEHW
director is set out below: T

Attendance of
Board meetings

Attendance of annual
general meeting

in 2014 in 2014

—E-MEHE —E-MFEHE
Name of director EspE IR R F REIRE E=ge@i™
Lai Pei Wor FEIEA 171 4/4
Chan Yau Wah PR EE 171 3/4
Kung Fan Cheong HLES 1/1 4/4
Leung Man Kay B E 1/1 4/4
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph s 1/1 4/4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION TEERR
The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. The ARG W REKRIEEELCLZEE - EF®
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties B EBITHIINT 2 EEEARE

set out hereunder:

(@) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and directors of the
Company;

(e) review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and from
time to time recommend any necessary changes.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are not
separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company, the Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts with the
Company for a specified period of two years and are appointed
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong who has been serving as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years, has
confirmed his independence with reference to the factors set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers Mr. Kung Fan
Cheong is still independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and will continue to bring
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals or reading books and
articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received
by the respective directors are kept by the company secretary of the
Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2014 is summarised below:

ESZRBRE W)
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PR 2 IECE B AR B R RWERE -

RE-T-—ME+-A=+—AILFE &
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Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

BEXEMEBRESRE

Name of Director EEHA EIRE
Lai Pei Wor FEEEAN 1
Chan Yau Wah PR EE 1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1
Leung Man Kay RHE 4
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph S| 1

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ng Kwong Kui (“Mr. Ng“) was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2009. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Ng has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website (except Executive
Committee) and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the current members of each Board committee (except
Executive Committee) are independent non-executive directors, while
all the members of the Executive Committee are executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

(c) to exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
its regular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 2 members, both
of them are independent non-executive directors. The members of
the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (chairman)
and Mr. Leung Man Kay.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out below:

yMESS
FMEZE S RAAMmABKEARK  EKEY
RELFRTES - FTHEZEENERILE
ERE () RRXESAE

AEERN HFMEREGCHRT-REH - #
MEEEERBEZHFLENT

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2014

—E-NEHE
Name of director BEEMR FHZEEESSBRE
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LEE (£E) 11
Leung Man Kay 2 HE 1/1

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
which should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive bonus
and retirement benefit policies for the Group which are substantial
in their cost and have an impact on a significant proportion of
employees; and

() to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2014 is set out below:

FMEES(#)

) BRERHEARTEELRSREEAS
FLEL AR AR IR S R AT B B
BRE - NHERZFRERSORR—

B ERBERA DR B - BENE
AFAE  FHBS

(9 BRI RHEREETRAEMEERE
REBESMIRNEERHE - AR
RELHEA DR B HARERS
MR8 ABRETEAEEE

N

(h WEREMESIEECAPEATG2H
R B C B H B

(i) fas RHERRRREKERRESRE
KA R B AR BB Z TV SIERT
MTE - REEA SRR EMBEE © &

() RSB G OEEGE LA ¥
THAEFERBETEEENSE -

AEERN  FHEZESRNTES 2FHME
MEEBERAESSRLES - FHEE
SNFHET RAHEARREEREREEAR
2 FNBOR R S8 o

SREEASHM A5

BEBELGEERTAFEBISKR REBEE-T
—MFE+ZA=+—RHILFERFHARIZ
DZRREEABHFMEIILT

Number of individuals

Remuneration by band A8 I HBIAZ
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZEZ1,000,0005 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017&JC% 1,500,000/ 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T%2,000,0007% 7T

Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, Mr. Leung Man Kay and Mr.
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is set
out below:

REEZESG
REZBEANA—BNITES  BIENE
E(EE)R=ZBBIIFATESMEK - B
LESRE  RXBERERFRHRLE

AEER REZRBEGCHETREH - 2
FLEGEKRBZHELELT

Attendance of
Nomination Committee
meeting in 2014

—E-NFEHE
Name of director EEHE REAZESERRH
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) FEER (FE) 1”1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1/1
Leung Man Kay R HE 1/1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph A 1/1

During the year, the duties of the Nomination Committee have been
revised as follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but not
limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry experience,
educational background, knowledge and length of service) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e) to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and the
measurable objectives that the board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives; and

(f)  to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

Board diversity policy has been formulated. In carrying out the
responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, the Committee will give adequate consideration
to the board diversity policy.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Lai Pei Wor and Mr. Kung Fan Cheong shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’'s circular dated 27 April 2015 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

2 e

BERFEA - ARAEMN TN TZE
B EE M EFMARARZMELT

Fees paid/payable

HK$

g EAER

Services rendered Frig it 2 IR 3% &I
Audit services ZE RS 990,000
Non-audit services (taxation services)  FFZEARTE (FFEARTS) 103,000
1,093,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in relation
to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of
the Company comprises three independent non-executive directors.
The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Leung Man
Kay, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Kay who has appropriate
accounting professional qualifications. Code Provision C.3.3 stipulates
that members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a
year with the Company’s auditors. During the year, there were two
meetings held between the Audit Committee and the Company’s
auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a
year. During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record of each Audit Committee member is set out below:
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Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2014

—E-MEHE
Name of director EEHE ERZESEIRY
Leung Man Kay (Chairman) RAXE (F/E) 3/3
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 3/3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph 4 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include

the

review of the Group’s financial statements and internal control

procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board and

the

Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

During the meetings held in 2014, the Audit Committee had performed

the

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

following works:

reviewed the directors’ report and audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

reviewed the interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2014;

reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the 2014
audit scope and fees;

reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system; and

reviewed the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The directors also ensure the publication of the
financial statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 38 and 39.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well defined management structure with
limits of authority which is designed to help the Group to achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensure proper maintenance of books and records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislations and
regulations. Such procedures are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

During the year, the effectiveness of the internal control system and
risk management system of the Group were reviewed. The review has
covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk management
aspects of the Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget. Both
the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group has been functioned effectively during
the year and no material internal control aspects of any significant
problems were noted.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2015 Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) will be held on 2 June
2015. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance code
and other information are posted and available for public access.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, member(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings, may by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
at the expense of such requisitionist(s). If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The requisition must specify the purpose of the meeting, and must
be signed by the relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened
as requested.
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Convening a special general meeting (“SGM") (continued)

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the member(s) concerned at
a SGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(a)

at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than to a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error; and

at least fourteen (14) clear days' and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other
than a Proposal for Election of Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and
regulation.

The Company holds an annual general meeting ("AGM") every
year, and may hold a general meeting known as a special general
meeting whenever necessary.

Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 members, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other
than a Proposal for Election of Director (continued)

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concern and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei
Muk Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks
before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.

4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the member(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung,
N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276 3000 for any
assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholder meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 58, is the chairman and managing director of
the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 33 years of experience in the industry. He is responsible for
the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy making and financial
management. He has been appointed as a director of Sun Ngai Plastic
Products Factory Limited, a director of Hunpex Limited, and a director
and legal representative of #RIFZERI: OFI) BRZAF] with effect
from 2 January 2013.

Mr. Chan Yau Wabh, aged 56, is the deputy chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
13 September 1996. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group and a general manager in Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 1990. He is responsible for the
planning and management in production activities. He holds a higher
diploma in production and industrial engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and
a diploma in management studies from the Hong Kong Management
Association. He has over 33 years of experience in the industry. He
has been appointed as a director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory
Limited, a director of Hunpex Limited, and a supervisor of S$RAAZER
B CFI) BRRAR] with effect from 2 January 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, aged 60, is a partner in the law firm of Pang,
Kung & Co. and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996.

Mr. Leung Man Kay, aged 63, is currently a financial and management
consultant. Mr. Leung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 28 September 2004. He has over 30 years’
experience in corporate restructuring, auditing and accounting and
financial management and is currently the managing director of China
Pith Consulting Limited. Mr. Leung was appointed as the chairman of
supervisory committee of Tianjin Motimo Membrane Technology Co.,
Ltd. in February 2011, which was listed on the ChiNext of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange with stock code number 300334 in July 2012, and
retired in November 2013. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, U.K. and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He is also a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 62, graduated from State University of
New York at Buffalo in the United States of America and holds a bachelor
of science in business administration degree. Mr. Li was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 24 August
2005. After working in the business sector for nine years, he joined
the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 1985 as an
assistant director and in 1992 he was appointed as a director of the
Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries from which post he
retired in January 2005. He has over 26 years’ experience in serving the
manufacturing industry of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Ho Chuen, Thomas, aged 47, is the marketing director of
consumer electronic products segment of the Group. Mr. Tam joined
the Group in July 2002. He is responsible for the marketing and
development. He holds a bachelor of electronic engineering from
Columbia University, U.S.A., a master degree of electronic engineering
from University of New South Wales, Australia and a master degree
of business administration from City University of Hong Kong. He has
over 22 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 55, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He has
over 31 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 54, is the production manager of the precision
parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory, Zhongshan.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for the operation
and management in production segment. He has over 28 years of
experience in the industry.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts and liquid crystal
displays), and the design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products (comprising time, weather forecasting and other products).
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 40 to 135.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2 cents
(2013: HK4 cents) per ordinary share on Friday, 3 July 2015 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Thursday, 11 June 2015. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained
profits within the equity section of the statements of financial position.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 29
May 2015 to Tuesday, 2 June 2015, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting of the Company,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 28 May 2015.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
9 June 2015 to Thursday, 11 June 2015, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the above dividend of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8 June 2015.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 136. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial
statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$32,783,444 (2013:
HK$36,699,015) of which HK$5,340,096 has been proposed as final
dividend for the year (2013: HK$10,680,192 has been proposed
as final dividend). During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Company declared and paid HK$5,340,096 as interim dividend for
the year and paid HK$10,680,192 as final dividend for 2013. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$50,856,881 (2013: HK$50,856,881) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 29.4% of the Group’s total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 9.3%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 31.4% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Leung Man Kay
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Lai Pei Wor and Kung Fan Cheong shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Leung Man Kay and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph,
the independent non-executive directors, are appointed for a period
of two years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Leung Man Kay and
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 28 and 29 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015, and the contract can be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven months’
prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2012 share option scheme was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company. No share options were granted, outstanding, lapsed,
cancelled or exercised during the year ended 31 December 2014,
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FrsRHEE - SORERME

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s
beneficially discretionary issued share
owned trust Total capital
2REREZ HARATBEBIT
Name of director BEHS BEEEHRES Rl A B B zE DL
Lai Pei Wor FEEE AN 17,622,000 *97,242,000 114,864,000 43.02
Chan Yau Wah PR A 2 7,700,000 - 7,700,000 2.88
25,322,000 97,242,000 122,564,000 45.90

Note: izt -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor’s interests are set out in the section headed
“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 32 to the financial statements, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:

EEERE
Report of the Directors

ESTBRODES 2EFR

B Ll BN ARG 2 #m M
MR IMM G RERME2B A B 2 B E
FHEMBBEEIN  NRABRAFERNEME
AHMER TEMEFIRES B ZEB/IKR
X F 2 REWE AR A B 2 B fn 3B 55 M EX
BN - MRS BT RERZSE
M RRBSHEERNE R RRFARES
BET SR - BUEE S A MEREAME
AERBES I FRER -

FERREREMATRARKRSG RBE
Rz EERER

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H " REARAE
FRETETHRABMA - FTHALHEE
(WHARREEFREBTHABR)RARF
Z By KRR R A RIERE 5 R B K
PISE336RBEHEN B LM AITEALRE
2R SORBIAT

rRE:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SHRERMEE

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Company's

beneficially minor Beneficiary issued

owned children of a trust Total  share capital

NG|

BE BB BRIREK

Name "2 EREEA ARETZ  HBREZEHEA FoE Bl

Chan Yuk Lin (Note a) BEE (fifsta) - 17,622,000 97,242,000 114,864,000 43.02

Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note b) ~ Celaya (PTC) Limited (Fffztb) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
(B.V1.) Limited (Note c) (B.V.L) Limited (FifzEc)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note d) BEE (fd) 1,880,000 21,450,000 - 23,330,000 8.74

Lam Lin Chu (Note d) WER (Mzd) 23,116,000 214,000 - 23,330,000 8.74

SEEBERARAT
—B-MEER
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERPERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(@) Ms. Chan Yuk Lin, spouse of Mr. Lai Pei Wor, was deemed to be interested
in the shares.

(b)  Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of The
Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate Services
(B.V.I.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust, a discretionary
trust of which the spouse and issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor are discretionary objects.

(c)  The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (b) above.

(d)  Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr. Lai
Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring interests
in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board Listing
Rules, are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a
resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at such annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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B BATHRE
Independent Auditor’s Report

MAZARS

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 135, which comprise
the consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Mazars CPA LIMITED
T ER ot i o 05 7 40 )

42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2015

Or Ming Chiu
Practising Certificate number: P04786
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maRER
Consolidated Income Statement

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E—=fF
Notes HK$ HK$
= BT BT
REVENUE PN 5 465,277,228 419,519,846
Cost of sales SHE R (390,494,890) (346,494,494)
Gross profit EF 74,782,338 73,025,352
Other income and gains H g A R UEs 5 6,879,494 17,186,488
Selling and distribution costs HE AR EEA AR (33,618,459) (32,548,289)
Administrative expenses 1THER (33,220,901) (32,265,324)
Other expenses HE A 6 (1,850,369) (700,625)
Finance costs BhE AR AN 8 (1,420,299) (1,002,764)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A 5 F 7 11,551,804 23,694,838
Income tax (expense)/credit iR (Fx), K% 11 (1,029,115) 2,330,387
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RN TR AFfh
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF  Z&EEF|
THE COMPANY 12 10,522,689 26,025,225
EARNINGS PER SHARE RN TR AFTh
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF BRER
THE COMPANY 14
Basic HK HK3.94 cents HK9.75 cents
Diluted e HK3.94 cents HK9.75 cents

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the  ANEERLE Z F BRI FERR U FE1345H5E o
financial statements.

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—EF-NF —F-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 10,522,689 26,025,225
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih2EUA
Items that will not be reclassified to BAEEFIEUERAR
profit or loss: ZIHEH
Surplus arising from revaluation of T RIEF B A%
land and buildings 3,801,624 12,488,713
Income tax effect FTiStis & (791,416) (2,863,480)
3,010,208 9,625,233
Items that may be reclassified HETMERIEUNER AR
subsequently to profit or loss: 2B :
Exchange differences on translation of BEGINETSREEL 2
foreign operations bE W =50 (244,187) 3,581,217
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REARFEEHMEEEA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2,766,021 13,206,450
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME RATEEAFEREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EHEUWALEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 13,288,710 39,231,675

BERERZERARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=Z-—mOFE+=A=+—H
At 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—E-mE —ET-=F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz - MENERE 15 214,615,320 186,415,614
Prepaid land lease payments Faf AR E 16 13,038,330 13,350,738
Other intangible assets HinfE & E 17 = -
Available-for-sale financial investment At HE SRR E 19 680,000 680,000
Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIBE B 30 = 434,200
Prepaid rent EEE 20 = 156,850
Total non-current assets IEmENE EAET 228,333,650 201,037,402
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 21 56,553,529 60,670,528
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 27 = 3,153,075
Prepayments, deposits and TARTRIE - Re REAM
other receivables FEUR FRI8 22 10,533,192 8,031,631
Trade and bills receivables FEEBRIE R Z % 23 79,852,656 71,447,340
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEEHR 24 35,305,971 55,645,830
Total current assets MENE EBET 182,245,348 198,948,404
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade payables FERTBRIE 25 43,998,205 48,497,085
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERT B fE R E AL 58 26 51,138,294 48,106,038
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 27 256,447 =
Interest-bearing bank and mRERITREMEE
other borrowings 28 28,395,144 29,112,005
Tax payable FESFRIE 6,299,396 9,122,965
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 130,087,486 134,838,093
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 52,157,862 64,110,311
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERABER
LIABILITIES 280,491,512 265,147,713

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued

R=ZB—NOF+=A=+—8
At 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—E—-NF —E—=4F
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and EERITREMEE
other borrowings 28 18,961,148 1,677,187
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIBAE 30 9,295,324 8,503,908
Total non-current liabilities FRBR EAEET 28,256,472 10,181,095
Net assets BEEE 252,235,040 254,966,618
EQUITY i
Issued capital BEBITIRA 31 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves = 33(a) 220,194,464 217,585,946
Proposed final dividend R A HIRR B 13 5,340,096 10,680,192
Total equity M A RE 252,235,040 254,966,618

Lai Pei Wor
FEIZFH
Director

EE

Chan Yau Wah
BR&RE

Director

EE

SEERERARA R
—E-mEEH




Consolidated Statement of Changes

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

in Equity

Share Asset  Exchange
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation  Retained  Proposed Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
(] EX
BEARA ROEER SRR  ERE  RBEE REEN  BERE  BGAE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B BT - B A7 B BT B
At 1 January 2014 RZ5-ME-A-A 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 45305876 12,670,075 108,092,463 10,680,192 254,966,618
Profit for the year NEERF = - - - - 10,522,689 - 10,522,689
Other comprehensive income REREMZERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on RERINETHE
translation of foreign EEVENEE
operations - - - - (244187) - - (244,187)
Surplus arising from revaluation ~ tHRETFZ
of land and buidings 7 - - - 3010208 - - - 3010208
Total comprehensive income REERERAES
for the year - - - 3010208  (244,187) 10,522,689 - 13,288,710
Transactions with owners HANGERNETZRS
of the Company
2013 final dividend paid TH-F-=F
(note 13) ABRE(MEE13) - - - - - - (10,680,192) (10,680,192)
2014 interim dividend paid TR=F-MmE
{note 13) AR S (i 13) = = = - - (5340,09) - (5340,09)
2014 final dividend proposed Ba2-IE
(note 13) RS (RE13) - - - - - (5340,09%) 534009 -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-IF
TZA=1-A 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *48,316,084 *12,425,888 *107,934,960 5,340,096 252,235,040
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

Share Asset  Exchange
Issied  premium Contributed ~ revaluation  fluctuation  Retained  Proposed Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits ~ dividends equity
gE EX
BEMRA ROEEER SRS EREE  RBRE  REEN  BERE  EREE
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=F—-f-A 26,700,480 50,856,381 660,651 35,680,643 9,083,858 98,087,526 10,680,192 231,755,231
Profit for the year KEEEF| = - - - - 26,025,225 - 26,025,225
Other comprehensive income REREMZERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERIERR
translation of foreign B ENEE
operations - - - - 3581217 - - 3,581,217
Surplus arising from revaluation i REF
of land and buildings EftRR - - - 962533 - - - 9625233
Total comprehensive income REERERAES
for the year - - - 9625233 3581217 26,025,225 - 39231675

BRLTRANETZRS

Transactions with owners

of the Company

2012 final dividend paid INZE-ZF
(note 13) RERE (HE3)

2013 interim dividend paid TH=F-=F
(note 13) hERE (K 13)

2013 final dividend proposed Ba—3--F
(note 13) RERS (HiE13)

At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%
+ZA=1-H

(10,680,192) (10,680,192)

(5,340,096)

(5,340,096)

(10,680,192) 10,680,192 =

26,700,480 *50,856,881

*660,651 *45,305,876  *12,670,075 *108,092,463

10,680,192 254,966,618

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$220,194,464
(2013: HK$217,585,946) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

* O REBEEAEUBEMRRERS ELEFERFES
47 A [ 15220,194,464 B T( T — =4F:
217,585,946/ 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
B = BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHzHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR AR A 11,551,804 23,694,838
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs RE R A 8 1,420,299 1,002,764
Bank interest income ERITHIBULA 5 (680,421) (271,305)
Depreciation e 7 14,901,208 13,347,035
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAF Lt & SR gH
payments 7 312,408 312,408
Amortisation of other intangible assets A S 7 = 317,496
Gain on bargain purchase g B U ES 5 = (2,799,926)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEWE - MERREZ
property, plant and equipment (Wz2),/ 518 7 (393,949) 1,314
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative TEeBTANRATEE
financial instruments — transactions BB (WS —TE4
not qualified for hedge accounting HheHEm 5 7 256,447 (3,153,075)
Realised loss/(gain) arising from derivative ~ #T4& R TAB &R
financial instruments — transactions not B () —TFE
qualified for hedge accounting R EHENR 5 7 1,593,922 (6,751,437)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWEBRTERI(E 7 49,491 201,318
Provision/(reversal of provision) for ST S RME (B ETEE) -
slow-moving inventories, net k- 7 258,147 (1,932,991)
29,269,356 23,968,439
Decrease in prepaid rent SEANE e 156,850 156,850
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZRL, (1) 3,858,852 (19,480,435)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TENFIE R e M H i E U
deposits and other receivables FIE 2 (), F (2,501,561) 5,437,142
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEWEBRTE R Eie 7
bills receivables (3gm),/ (8,454,807) 1,428,921
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERTBRIEZ O ),/ 80 (4,498,880) 4,666,851
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities EtaEREMEMNREL
and other payables 2,/ Chd) 3,032,256 (1,979,265)
Cash generated from operations REXBMEEZRE 20,862,066 14,198,503
Interest received S G 680,421 271,305
Interest paid BFE (1,055,881) (840,689)
Interest element on finance lease payments & &N 2 Fl 8217 (364,418) (162,075)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFEHR (1,697,389) (974,928)
Overseas taxes paid BEINIA (1,666,536) (572,236)
Net cash flows from operating activities — IR SR VIS ARRE —
page 47 F4TE 16,758,263 11,919,880
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
Notes HKS$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Net cash flows from operating activities - K& XK 7B EHAEE
page 46 — 28468 16,758,263 11,919,880
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING RETBHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE WEKEE
and equipment (38,594,089) (13,897,512)

BHEBAREL ZEE

Settlement arising from forward

currency contract (82,604) =
Proceeds from termination of forward BRI EAEE SR

currency contracts FTS308 1,641,758 7,802,849
Acquisition of business E Al = (8,705,595)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  RE KR E

property, plant and equipment FT{S 308 652,443 619,760
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEEH 2R R L T (36,382,492) (14,180,498)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING RMEFH2RERE

ACTIVITIES
Increase in unsecured bank loans/revolving  EIEKIFIRITE R BIEREH

term loan B 11,000,000 7,444,138
Increase in discounted bills BRIRE 3 73810 21,434 735,366
Repayment of unsecured instalment loans (B @M H BHER (18,006,976) (3,702,516)
New unsecured instalment loan raised ik S HE R = 12,000,000
New finance leases raised MR ENE 31,418,538 -
Capital element of finance lease payments  FEBERN K2 EAIH (8,829,960) (2,257,371)
Dividend paid BEfRRE (16,020,288) (16,020,288)
Net cash flows used in financing activities & E®) 2R &% T F5 (417,252) (1,800,671)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBLSEEERZ

EQUIVALENTS A (20,041,481) (4,061,289)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FEYzRERBEEMEER

of year 55,645,830 59,277,670
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ER&EiE) 2 &2 (298,378) 429,449
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND FX&BE&REESZEER

OF YEAR 35,305,971 55,645,830
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HBeRBESSEEBELEHZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS D
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITER 24 35,305,971 42,945,830
Non-pledged time deposits I TEHER 24 = 12,700,000

35,305,971 55,645,830
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Statement of Financial Position

R=Z-—mOFE+=A=+—H
At 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—E-mE =%
Notes HK$ HK$
FisE BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AT Z2EE 18 187,547,148 170,637,420
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BARE R kEfM
receivables FEU FR I8 22 245,228 245,228
Dividend receivable from a subsidiary el —FEM B AR E 6,000,000 10,800,000
Cash and cash equivalents e RIREZEEER 24 54,726 110,222
Total current assets MENE EBET 6,299,954 11,155,450
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables fEsta B R E M EN I 26 83,506,297 67,536,494
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (77,206,343)  (56,381,044)
Net assets BESE 110,340,805 114,256,376
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT 31 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves B 33(b) 78,300,229 76,875,704
Proposed final dividend EEAHRE 13 5,340,096 10,680,192
Total equity - ey 110,340,805 114,256,376

Lai Pei Wor
FEIZA
Director

BEFE

Chan Yau Wah
PR & 2

Director

EF
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office
is located at Units 2304-06, 23rd Floor, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

e  manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
(comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic components
and parts, and liquid crystal displays); and

e design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products (comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). These
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for land and buildings, derivative financial
instruments and an available-for-sale financial investment, which
have been measured at revalued amount/fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 31
December each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.

2.1

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RAEEEE)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling interest
even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit
balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest determined at the date when control is lost
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the
date when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
parent had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a
financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2013
financial statements except for the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year as set out in note 2.2 to the financial statements. A
summary of other principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new/
revised HKFRSs for the first time. Other than as further explained,
the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs has had no significant
impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements for
offsetting financial instruments. These amendments do not have
an impact on the consolidated financial statements as they are
consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, additional
information is required to be disclosed when the recoverable
amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. These amendments do not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

2.1

2.2

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 23EEMEERERZEBYE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that are
not yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
early adopted. Those HKFRSs that are pertinent to the Group’s
operations are as follows:
Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project —
2010-2012 Cycle '
Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project —
2011-2013 Cycle '

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation 2
Annual Improvements Project —
2012-2014 Cycle ?

Various HKFRSs

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments *

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
limited exceptions

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the
results of the Group.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the elements of control.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries
of the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the
joint venture.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed
frequently to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not
differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as movements
in the asset revaluation reserve. Decrease in valuation are first
offset against increase on earlier valuations in respect of the same
asset and thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged.

As the Group’s lease payments for its leasehold land and buildings
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements at the inception of the lease because similar land
and buildings are not sold or leased separately, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the leasehold land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2% t0 2.7%
2.5% to 30%
10% to 25%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of their expected useful lives or the term of the leases.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSTHERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of a revaluated asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the followings: 1) the technical feasibility of completing the
project related to the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale; 2) its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset; 3) how the asset will generate future economic
benefits; 4) the availability of resources to complete the project;
and 5) the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are amortised using
the straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products (not exceeding five years), commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Licenses

Licenses are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of five years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group are accounted for as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. At
the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease obligation. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease term.

Rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease term.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or as available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date (the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset). Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, available-
for-sale financial investment and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial investments or held-to-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at
designation and derivative financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bills receivable, and deposits and other receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are not held for
trading. They are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-free loans
and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting
would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition over the
period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are recognised
in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSTHERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated at this category or not classified
in any of the other categories of financial assets.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale financial investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment. Interest and dividends earned are
reported as interest income and dividend income in the income
statement respectively.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial investments
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables
and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets
for the foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSTHERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset (whether
significant or not), it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement,
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” is evaluated against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss (measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement) is reclassified from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement). Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the income statement.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the events of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period of the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks (including
term deposits), which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSTHERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of other assets

Other than deferred tax assets, inventories and financial assets
within the scope of HKAS 39, where an indication of impairment
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating
unit. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset (other than
goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

BE_Z-NF+_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial o MEERILEFHIEAENERFER
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not HFEEBEHRIEEZEENR

a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:
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where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

From the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continveq)
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Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/
or service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction
awards are treated equally.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods or
services received, except where the fair value cannot be reliably
estimated, in which case they are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair value
is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the services.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. \Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for
all of its eligible employees. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency).
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into Hong Kong dollars, the presentation currency.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy on
inventories based on ageing given that the inventories are not
subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent technological
changes. However, as a significant portion of the working capital
is devoted to inventories, operational procedures have been
in place to monitor this risk. The Group reviews the inventory
ageing listing on a periodical basis for those aged inventories. This
involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory
items with the respective net realisable value. The purpose is
to ascertain whether allowance is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodical basis in order to determine whether the allowance
needs to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective
inventories identified.

3.

B E Tt R A E

BN GE M HRERE - BEEFLMA
AAERARZBREAE - HEZET
AEBESHBRZER  BE  AF -
WARZHZ 2HREHE - ARFAEHZ
BE - RSRENS - WARRKER
AERER  SREHBENEHEERT
BEEZRRFEZEAY - WEERN
T T2 ET 8 EERT IR AR
KERRE (48 BRIER] IR E AR KR T
VARERR ©

rE

ERFEMNEE YRR IR LK
MEsTE  AEELERIFRERERE
FEH—RIEBER © A - KEDEE
BeHRAFEZH @ HAKED R
URRERRF  BARRRERR o A%
BERERFEZFEREK - @G
REFEREMNKREERS A EE
FELELE  BNERREREHE
EPBHRE - EMRERBHEEFERE
e - WA B R E#ETE
BREEH - LORERBFEZIEMD B
HRERAREFEELEE -

Trade receivables FE Uk BR 18
In judging whether allowances for estimated irrecoverable AEBEAERRHZNTHBHRER P E
amounts of the trade receivables have to be recognised in the R ME YR IE 2 fi 5T 1 ) UK (2] 30088 2 4

financial statements, the Group takes into consideration if there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the
debts. Following the identification of doubtful debts, the Group’s
responsible personnel discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Specific allowance
is only made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets

In assessing the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets, the Group takes into
account factors like the expected usage of the assets by the
Group based on past experience, the expected physical wear
and tear, and the technical obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in production or from a change in the market
demand for the products. The estimation of the useful lives is
a matter of judgement based on the experience of the Group.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations and
valuations require the use of judgements and estimates. At 31
December 2014, no impairment losses have been recognised
for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
(2013: Nil). The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was HK$214,615,320 (2013: HK$186,415,614) and the carrying
amount of other intangible assets was nil at 31 December 2014
(2013: Nil).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating
to recognised tax losses was nil at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$434,200).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Current income taxes and deferred tax liabilities

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Singapore. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact on the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination is made. The carrying amounts of tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2014 were HK$6,299,396
(2013: HK$9,122,965) and HK$9,295,324 (2013: HK$8,503,908)
respectively.

Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position, which are assessed
annually by management with reference to valuations performed
by independent professionally qualified valuers. In determining
the revalued amounts, the valuers have based on the method
of valuations which involve certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation reports, the directors of the Group have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuations
is reflective of the current market conditions. The carrying
amounts of the land and buildings at 31 December 2014 were
HK$116,250,000 (2013: HK$115,850,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale financial
investments and recognises movements in their fair values
in equity. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether
there is an impairment that should be recognised in the income
statement. At 31 December 2014, no impairment losses have
been recognised for available-for-sale financial investment (2013:
Nil). The carrying amount of available-for-sale financial investment
was HK$680,000 (2013: HK$680,000).

Impairment of other assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all other non-financial assets (other than inventories and
deferred tax assets) and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries
at the end of each reporting period which are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

BE_Z-NE+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

B E S Al R AT (47

AHRHEESMRE ZRE

AEERETEEDBANHRIESH
®E W ERERE AT EEZS) -
EATEERIK  EEEHERRD
EHBE - NETEDTRFBRER
BE - R=_T—NOF+=_A=+—8 "
I LA S iR A R EE 1B
(ZZ2—=F : &) - JHEESRIEE
2 BRTE{EA680,0008 T (- T —=4:
680,000/87T) °

Hitb &EE ZRE

AEEFERDERANSEAREHR
FRAEMEE(FENELEHAEE
BRI EARRRMBRRZERERR
MEZBR - WHRBPRKRAKREE
AIREEZM B R ETTRE R - HEE
SRS EL BN < REEBEE KD
BE(AEENAFEERLEERK
EREE UWBRERE) - 5)@%@7‘3‘%
R - AFEERHEEANE %
,\%’]ﬁij]Z%%/qux%qJE’Jéﬂ‘kT
RETISERREEMEREREER
BEMBINKA - BETAIREENE
B BEEENAGTEZEEIRERK
)?%MZ?EH;@ AR REFEDIG

BEEEZ2ER  UFHEZEFRS
lllbiziﬁlﬁ

BERERZERARAA

—R-mEEH




B HmRRMEE e

Notes to Financial Statements (continveq)

HE=

Year

—ME+-A=+—HILFE
ended 31 December 2014

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the precision parts and components segment comprises the
manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic components
and parts, and liquid crystal displays;

(b) the consumer electronic products segment comprises the
design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
long term investments, together with corporate income and
expense items.

Management, the chief decision makers, monitors the results
of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/
loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
loss before tax except that bank interest income and finance
costs are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the cost of sales.

Intersegment management fee is eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RETEERE)
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z—NE+-A=+—HLEE
Precision Consumer
parts and electronic Corporate
components products and others Total
BRI ETHER AR E A @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Sales to external customers HOMAE 361,534,189 103,743,039 - 465,277,228
Intersegment sales NEEERIEE 895,226 392,358 - 1,287,584
Intersegment management fee NEERIERE = - 4,920,000 4,920,000
Other income and gains, H A R dies
excluding bank interest income AEERITHERA 5,002,835 1,189,627 6,611 6,199,073
367,432,250 105,325,024 4,926,611 477,683,885
Reconciliation: A0 -
Elimination of intersegment sales WEPEE I SHE 2 8K (1,287,584)
Elimination of intersegment NEERIEEE H i
management fee (4,920,000)
Total segment revenue BAYFEWA 471,476,301
Segment results: PEXE: 23,202,956 (9,407,311)  (1,503,963) 12,291,682
Reconciliation: AL -
Bank interest income FITHEHA 680,421
Finance costs BEMRA (1,420,299)
Profit before tax BB AR 11,551,804
Other segment information: HitaBEH
Depreciation neE (9,348,896)  (2,665,571)  (2,886,741)  (14,901,208)
Impairment of trade receivables [EMERIRRE (49,491) = = (49,491)
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE - BER
plant and equipment, net St R 292,949 91,000 10,000 393,949
Reversal of provision/(provision) for B EEERRD
slow-moving inventories, net (Bfh) 8 138,324 (396,471) = (258,147)
Surplus on revaluation of land and THREFERZ
buildings credited to NS ESELON
other comprehensive income - - 3,801,624 3,801,624
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT L E T
payments (312,408) - - (312,408)
Fair value loss on derivative financial ~ #T#®BTANATERE
instruments - transactions not BE-TRaHR
qualified for hedge accounting SEENR 5 (194,900) (61,547) = (256,447)
Realised loss arising from derivative fTESRIAEER
financial instruments - transactions BE-THEH
not qualified for hedge accounting AN S (1,301,492) (292,430) = (1,593,922)
Capital expenditure BARX
- additions —hE (38,561,084) (823,579) (173,490)  (39,558,153)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BEPBERH)

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE_ZT—=F+-A=1+—HIFE
Precision Consumer
parts and electronic Corporate
components products and others Total
LA ETHER BERREMD aar
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: PEBA
Sales to external customers HIMEE 305,648,247 113,871,599 - 419,519,846
Intersegment sales NEERIEE 1,219,706 417,360 - 1,637,066
Intersegment management fee NHERIERE - = 4,200,000 4,200,000
Other income and gains, HA A R lizs
excluding bank interest income PEBRTHEHA 11,352,789 5,755,337 (192,943) 16,915,183
318,220,742 120,044,296 4,007,057 442,272,095
Reconciliation: A -
Elimination of intersegment sales WEARRIHE 2 3535 (1,637,066)
Elimination of intersegment NEERIEEE 2 H
management fee (4,200,000)
Total segment revenue BTN 436,435,029
Segment results: PEEE 19,390,761 6,432,974 (1,397,438) 24,426,297
Reconciliation: A0 -
Bank interest income RITHISUA 271,305
Finance costs REMKA (1,002,764)
Profit before tax R ADR A 23,694,838
Other segment information: HitpEEH
Depreciation and amortisation of WEREMEREERH
other intangible assets (8,436,018) (3,177,336) (2,051,177)  (13,664,531)
Impairment of trade receivables YRR E (201,318) = = (201,318)
Loss on disposal of items of property, &% - BERREZ
plant and equipment, net B F8 (1,314) = = (1,314)
Reversal of provision for slow-moving ~ W#HFEHERE - F8
inventories, net 228,043 1,704,948 - 1,932,991
Surplus on revaluation of land THREFERZ
and buildings credited to other Befet AEMEEBA
comprehensive income - - 12,488,713 12,488,713
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT E S
payments (312,408) - - (312,408)
Fair value gain on derivative financial ~ {T£ 2R IANRTEE
instruments - transactions not Wzs —IREE
qualified for hedge accounting BHENR S 2,605,305 547,770 - 3,153,075
Realised gain arising from derivative MTESRTIERER
financial instruments - transactions Wgs — A
not qualified for hedge accounting BHENR S 5,131,092 1,620,345 - 6,751,437
Gain on bargain purchase WiigsaE W 2,799,926 = = 2,799,926
Capital expenditure BARX
- additions —hE (12,044,343) (1,302,234) (2,415,944) (15,762,521)
- additions - business combination —RE-EBAH (9,521,674) = = (9,521,674)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RETEERE)

Geographical information i @ & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) #IHELA
2014 2013
—T-IF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Hong Kong B 66,927,139 82,060,176
Mainland China BN S 76,237,372 43,002,309
Japan and other Asian countries BHARE IR 68,854,074 62,569,013
North America EZ=M 47,828,516 57,476,008
South America EE! 23,546,675 16,924,813
Europe BM 176,345,058 149,069,394
Other countries H xR 5,538,394 8,418,133

465,277,228 419,519,846

The revenue information above is based on the geographical LA ESHEWARE P AT it = £l
locations of the customers. 7 e
(b) Non-current assets (b) FEREEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=4
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong BB 50,231,789 49,509,858
Mainland China AR B K B 177,412,407 150,377,583
Other countries H B 9,454 35,761

227,653,650 199,923,202

The non-current asset information above is based on the A EEREBEEREEMEMER
geographical locations of assets and excludes an available- 2o ETEETHEE SRR
for-sale financial investment and deferred tax assets. BRFEERIBEE
Information about a major customer FEEFER
During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no customer HE-Z—NMER-T—=F+-A=
contributed over 10% of the total sales of the Group. T—HIEFEA @ WERFGAREEE

HEZM10% ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - HftW A R Wz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WA(BAREEBSXRE)IEANFEENIEE
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and EmMEESENGREERE S -
trade discounts, during the year.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is REFWA  EfhUg A R ES 2 AT a0
as follows: 5 ¢
2014 2013
—gF—mF —E-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods EERE S 465,277,228 419,519,846
Other income and gains H A A R Wz
Bank interest income RITAL WA 680,421 271,305
Tooling charge income RERA 729,943 634,406
Sale of scrap EERHE 1,022,296 989,794
Sale of samples Emi=h= 1,284,514 1,505,383
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEMFE  BMERREZ
plant and equipment, net Was - JFEE 393,949 =
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTESRITANATFEERE
instruments - transactions not —REEH P ETENR S
qualified for hedge accounting - 3,153,075
Realised gain arising from derivative PTESRIT AR SRR
financial instruments - transactions —TREHHETHENR S
not qualified for hedge accounting - 6,751,437
Gain on bargain purchase W R B - 2,799,926
Foreign exchange gain, net b 5 e - JFEE 2,167,597 =
Others Hith 600,774 1,081,162

6,879,494 17,186,488

6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. HittEH
Group
£

2014 2013

—E-QmEF —E-=F

HK$ HK$

BT Vop

Foreign exchange loss, net b &8 - R - 696,465
Fair value loss on derivative financial MESMITANQA T EEER
instruments — transactions not — TN REEFPEENENRZ S

qualified for hedge accounting 256,447 -

Realised loss arising from derivative PTEERIADZAEE

financial instruments — transactions — T REEFPEENRZ S

not qualified for hedge accounting 1,593,922 -

Others HAftb - 4,160

1,850,369 700,625
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBEADRF

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NE BB A S R (GEA):

2014 2013
—ZE—mF —E-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration E LFX (BIEEFME
— note 9)*: —FFEE9)*
Wages and salaries ITERF® 147,848,944 135,898,207
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes #ERTEFIFT &I #E5K 14,308,141 12,103,579
162,157,085 148,001,786
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAE 390,236,743 348,109,989
Provision/(reversal of provision) for T B (B EREE) -
slow-moving inventories, net* SRR 258,147 (1,932,991)
Auditor's remuneration ZEET B & 1,222,335 1,187,175
Depreciation* E 14,901,208 13,347,035
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments Tt 170 & 7 35 312,408 312,408
Minimum lease payments under operating T NEFZ HIKE
leases on land and buildings* &M 5,843,229 5,867,007
Amortisation of other intangible assets* Hfh T A A g = 317,496

Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial fTA SR TENRFEE
instruments — transactions not B (W) - T FE

qualified for hedge accounting HHREEENR S 256,447 (3,153,075)
Realised loss/(gain) arising from derivative ~ $TE® BT AB#HERE

financial instruments — transactions not (g ) — DA EREETE

qualified for hedge accounting MR 5 1,593,922 (6,751,437)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net 5 (kss) 518« /F58 (2,167,597) 696,465
Impairment of trade receivables FEURBR IR RE 49,491 201,318

(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property, &M% - WEEREZ

plant and equipment, net (Wzs),/ 518 - 55 (393,949) 1,314
# The staff cost amounting to HK$130,836,826 (2013: HK$117,349,588), # RNEE 2z 8 T % 7130,836,826/8 7T

(=Z & — = % :117,349,588% T ) -
Yr&E 512,209,703 (T — =& :

depreciation amounting to HK$12,209,703 (2013: HK$11,698,848) and

minimum lease payments under operating leases on land and buildings

amounting to HK$5,371,521 (2013: HK$5,437,031) for the year are 11,698,848/ 7 ) | T3 RIEF 2 H D4

included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement BHEMK5,371,521B L (=T —=4F:

respectively. 5,437,031 L) E DRI EEEE FE
RZ[HEKARIA -

*  The amortisation of other intangible assets and the provision/(reversal * KREEZHMEREERHERSHTE
of provision) for slow-moving inventories for the year are included in B (BEBR)ESRSEEREF
“Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement respectively. HRZIHEKAIA °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERARHDFAOT :
Group
£
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RAFARERZRITERK
wholly repayable within five years FEXZHE 1,055,881 840,689
Interest on finance leases BERER S 364,418 162,075
1,420,299 1,002,764
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to RIE TG R AT B S A RAEBI (532
the Listing Rules and the predecessor Hong Kong Companies BE)MHERBE2EEMESMT ¢
Ordinance (Cap. 32), are as follows:
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYKHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RNEEAEZNTEIERTES
the year were as follows: ZHE
Group
58
2014 2013
—E2-F —E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Kung Fan Cheong &S 319,560 304,296
Leung Man Kay RE 319,560 304,296
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =g 319,560 304,296
958,680 912,888
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent AEEANLERBLERNTES
non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil). XNEMME(ZE—=F: &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION(continued) 9. EEME (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Contributions
to retirement
Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries bonus schemes  allowances remuneration
RINER
ok ¢ HiERA STEIMR b= )= 11 s
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2014 “E-IE
Executive directors;  ETEZE :
Lai Pei Wor B - 2,379,390 366,060 16,750 50,000 2,812,200
Chan Yau Wah Bk E - 1948310 599,480 - 50,000 2,597,790
- 4,327,700 965,540 16,750 100,000 5,409,990
2013 —T-=F
Executive directors;  H{TEZ :
Lai Pei Wor FEIE AN = 2,379,390 915,150 15,000 50,000 3,359,540
Chan Yau Wah BRE - 1,948,310 899,220 - 50,000 2,897,530
- 437,700 1,814,370 15,000 100,000 6,257,070
10. SEVEN HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. tUERSHEES
The seven highest paid employees during the year included two REELUEaHEEREMU(ZE
(2013: two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration —=F WU TES  FBEIR
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the Xz e p N AM(ZE—=F: 1
remaining five (2013: five) non-director, highest paid employees f)BEEFZFESEEZHMEFRN
for the year are as follows: N
Group
58
2014 2013
—Z-mF —E—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries, allowances and HAFH ¢  ZMEEYA =
benefits in kind 4,960,280 4,883,320
Discretionary bonus IBIEAL 870,860 1,071,147
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes KT FIFT B #E5K 50,250 45,000
5,881,390 5,999,467
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

10. SEVEN HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 10. tEBESHEE &)
The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is IEERSHEEZHMEMBHEN
within the following bands: T

Number of employees

EEAH
2014 2013
—E-NF —F=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #Z%1,000,000/57C 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001& 7C=2,000,00078 7T 1 1
5 5
11. INCOME TAX 1. Fi8%
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% ERFEHREEATENERE BB
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in SHPERFE T A16.5% (ZE— =4 :
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on assessable profits outside 16.5% ) Bt KB o IR B BIRINE
Hong Kong have been calculated at the tax rates prevailing in it A HRIBE BB EEL LT
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. ERERENERATEGTE -
Group
&5
2014 2013
—EB-F —E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT T
Current — Hong Kong RE—FE
Charge for the year REEZH 1,728,207 1,787,178
Provision written back B R E = (5,326,802)
Over provision in prior years TR (1,064,566) (158,812)
Current — outside Hong Kong RNE—FBFEI
Charge for the year REFEFEXH 2,314,257 1,311,208
Over provision in prior years FFBRRE A (2,382,983) (42,916)
Deferred (note 30) IS (P7E30) 434,200 99,757
Tax charge/(credit) for the year REEHREBEL H,(KR) 1,029,115 (2,330,387)
During the year ended 31 December 2013, a provision of HE_Z—=F+"_A=+—HILFE
HK$5,326,802 was written back as the corresponding tax issue A BREER—EREEREELRTHE
was settled with the tax authority in favour of the Group. MRAEBEPRE - BRI SIAR R

5,326,802/ T, ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. FRB8% (&)

BERGERNARBAREXZHHE AR
P 528 85 8 S8R B AL AR 2 R TE B SR AT
BHEMBAEAENARR ZHEHN

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are operated to the tax expense

is as follows: T
Group
|
2014 2013
—E—mEF =%
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Profit before tax B 15 A& A 11,551,804 23,694,838
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% REERE16.5% 2 FIB
(2013: 16.5%) —ZE—=%:165%) 1,906,048 3,909,648
Effect of different rates for companies Ht AR LM EERIEN
operating in other jurisdictions TRME 2 2 853,579 28,091
Income not subject to tax - Gl ON (732,529) (2,090,663)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR R 2 1,162,318 2,158,387
Unrecognised temporary differences AERAZEEEEZR 216,408 (68,736)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised AR AR AR ERZ
tax losses TIAEE = (745,276)
Recognition of previously unrecognised FRLART BRI AR R 2
deferred tax assets EIEFRIAE B = (434,200)
Provision written back g = (5,326,802)
Over provision in prior years 7 F B (3,447,549) (201,728)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ FIBEE 1,034,531 365,890
Write-down of deferred tax asset IRIEFTIA B EEMUR = 30,388
Others Hth 36,309 44,614
Tax charge/(credit) for the year AEEREZL(HH) 1,029,115 (2,330,387)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12. AR BB AFGEER
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company HE—_ZET--ME+-_A=+—HIE
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a profit of & - RRBIHER AT ERE =N BIEE
HK$104,717 (2013: HK$35,035) which has been dealt with in RRABMBHRERD 2HEMB104,7177%
the financial statements of the Company (note 33(b)). 7T (ZZ—=4 :35,0358;) (Hs=
33(b)) -
Reconciliation of the Company’s profit for the year to the above RNEFRMNE Fill 582 RE
amount:
2014 2013
—E-MF —T=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Company’s profit for the year NEE R A)EF 12,104,717 16,835,035
Dividends from subsidiaries attributable to BB B¢ AR E 4 F
the profits of the previous years, EEZRE-—RAEAFE
approved and paid during the year o R A (12,000,000)  (16,800,000)
Consolidated profit attributable to owners — ZRABIHEA ARERE IS
dealt with in the Company’s financial R AR R
statements 104,717 35,035
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2014 2013
Lk —F-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Attributable to the current year: RANFE Pk
Proposed final dividend — HK2 cents mAHRE—EREEAR2
(2013: HK4 cents) per ordinary share AL (ZZ—=5F: 45810) 5,340,096 10,680,192
Interim dividend paid — HK2 cents XA HARR B — B AR AR 2
(2013: HK2 cents) per ordinary share Bl (ZZ2—=5F:27810) 5,340,096 5,340,096
10,680,192 16,020,288
Attributable to previous years, AR RHE R TS LARTE
approved and paid during the year: SRk
Final dividend — HK4 cents RNEARR B — T AT @ AR AL
(2013: HK4 cents) per ordinary share ZE = 4EA) 10,680,192 10,680,192
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval RFEEEBEARARSEFARFRKRE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general BEREG EHE - FAMEE -
meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. ZXABEBEAFIEEBRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based BRI E AR K 858 AR TR AN E 2K
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company NRER AFERA R ARFEAND BT
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue IIEEF RS B AT E -

during the year.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are FIRER R ESS R R TIRE A T atE
based on:
2014 2013
—T-mF —F=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  ZANAFI#EA AFT{L 5@
used in the basic and diluted earnings per ARERERR
share calculations BERFE 10,522,689 26,025,225
Shares % 12
Weighted average number of ordinary shares NEFRNE ST 2 HNHEE
in issue during the year used in the basic HERKREE AREK
and diluted earnings per share calculation EARREERFFE 267,004,800 267,004,800
As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted ErEAEEE NN LBk - £ —
earnings per share was the same as basic earnings per share in MER—_ZE-—=FHEREARNET

2014 and 2013.

REER T AER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE
Group £E
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
G- £ER
THRET HELE HEREE  BOAERE AE 8 @it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2014 b 213
+zfA=t-8
At 31 December 2013 and RZB-=%
1 January 2014; TZAZ+-BR
—E-NE
-f-A:
Cost or valuation WA A 115,850,000 43,962,988 125434436 30,197,793 3979346 60,527,234 379,951,797
Accumulated depreciation Zithe - (17,115503)  (87,133,610)  (27,652,006)  (1,146,679)  (60,488,385) (193,536,183)
Net carrying amount BEFE 115,850,000 26,847,485 38,300,826 2,545,787 2,832,667 33,849 186,415,614
At 1 January 2014, R=E3-TWE—AR-A:
net carying amount FEFE 115,850,000 26,847,485 38,300,826 2,545,787 2,832,667 38,849 186,415,614
Additions AE - 10,119,365 26,766,778 1,430,261 1,241,749 - 39,558,153
Disposals e = = (232,873) (18,509) (1.112) - (258,494)
Depreciation il (3401,624)  (2,765709) (6,822,900 (971,443) (900,683) (38,849)  (14,901,208)
Surplus on revaluation credited to ~ EfERERFTA
other comprehensive income Ef2ERA 3,801,624 - - - - - 3,801,624
Exchange realignment NEDE - - - (369) - - (369)
At 31 December 2014, RZZ-IE
net carrying amount TZA=+-H:
FEFE 116,250,000 34,201,141 58,011,831 2,985,727 3,166,621 - 214615320
At 31 December 2014: RZZ-IE
+=A=t-H
Cost or valuation RASME 116,250,000 54082353 147,412,647 31,500,072 4,642277 60,527,234 414,414,583
Accumulated depreciation Zithe - (19.881212)  (89,400,816)  (28,514,345)  (1,475656)  (60,527,234) (199,799,263)
Net carrying amount REEE 116,250,000 34,201,141 58,011,831 2,985,727 3,166,621 - 214615320

Analysis of cost or valuation A EEA :

at 31 December 2014; RIE-RE

+-A=1-A
At cost A - 54,082,353 147,412,647 31,500,072 4,642,277 60,527,234 298,164,583
At valuation e 116,250,000 - - - - - 116,250,000

116,250,000 54,082,353 147,412,647 31,500,072 4,642,271 60,527,234 414,414,583
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y% -  MERREZE)
Group £F
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Moulds Total
B FER
TiREF BELE  HEREE  HAERE B KR @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
31 December 2013 “3=F
T-A=t-H
At 31 December 2012 and RZT-Z%
1 January 2013; TZR=1T-Bk
Z-zf
—-F-R:
Cost o valuation AR 104,665000 48,114,705 109,657,535 28,184,905 2016748 60,527,234 353,166,127
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (21359210)  (84129.904)  (26,250,949)  (1,779473)  (60,179,228)  (193,698,764)
Net carrying amount FEFE 104,665,000 26755495 25,527,631 1,933,956 231,275 38,006 159,467,363
At 1 January 2013, RZE-=F
net carrying amount -A-B-
REEE 104,665,000 26,755495 25,527,631 1,933,956 231,275 38006 159,467,363
Additions hE - 2,161,687 9,956,353 1,066,106 2,578,375 - 15,762,521
Additions - business combination & — X BAH = - 8,636,230 655,131 230313 - 9,521,674
Disposals HE = = (621,074) = = = (621,074)
Depreciation e (3.056,234) (2,648,385  (5945500)  (1,155,372) (232,387) (309,157)  (13,347,039)
Surplus on revaluation credited to  BIAREAZTA
other comprehensive income Ef2ERA 12,488,713 - - - - - 12488713
Exchange realignment HERR 1,752,521 578,688 747,186 45,966 19,091 - 3,143,452
At 31 December 2013, W_E-=%
net carrying amount tZR=t-8:
REEE 115,850,000  26,847485 38,300,826 2,545,787 2,832,667 38,849 186,415,614
At 31 December 2013; RW_E-=%
ToA=+-B:
Cost o valuation FRASIEE 115850000 43,962,988 125434436 30,197,793 3979346 60,527,234 379,951,797
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (17,115503)  (87,133610)  (27.652,006)  (1,146,679)  (60,488,385) (193,536,183)
Net carrying amount FEFE 115,850,000 26,847,485 38,300,826 2,545,787 2,832,667 38849 186,415,614
Analysis of cost or valuation A MAEAN :
at 31 December 2013; RZE-=F
tZA=1-H
At cost A - 13962988 125434436 30,197,793 3979346 60,527,234 264,101,797
At valuation A 115,850,000 - - - - - 115,850,000

115,850,000 43,962,988 125,434,436 30,197,793 3,979,346 60,527,234 379,951,797
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

15

16.

. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$38,500,000 (2013:
HK$38,400,000) is situated in Hong Kong and is held under a
medium term lease.

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end of the
reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuers. The land and buildings in
Hong Kong were revalued on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, based on their existing state, while the
buildings in Mainland China were revalued using the depreciated
replacement cost method. No changes were made in the valuation
technique(s) during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013. A surplus arising from revaluation on the land and buildings
of HK$3,801,624 (2013: HK$12,488,713) has been credited to
other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
their carrying amounts would have been included in the
financial statements at approximately HK$57,676,000 (2013:
HK$59,587,000).

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. 1% - MERRB#E)

REBUNEBHN b REFERED
¥ BEMRER  WiRZFHBHESES
2 BRM {8 438,500,000/ 0 ( — & —
=4 : 38,400,000/ 7T ) °

NEEZ T REFRFEEIRABEL
EELERGEMEETENGME -
BEATHREFREBEFANTSE
BEREFAORLERS  mMPBIARED
BFARTEEERNEEH - BE
ZENERZTE—=FF+=ZA=+
—BIEFERN BE@AMGEFEZLEE
HEMES - ALilifAEmMEENE
{5 & 83,801,624 L(—_F —=4F :
12,488,713 L) Est A w2 M UK
]\o

ANEE B i RAZTF AR £ Ak AR 25T
EXRAEBEYIE  HEAEEFAN
IR P - E S E 4 A57,676,00078
TT(=ZZF—=% : 59,587,000/ 7T) °

16. S L HEERK

Group
£

2014 2013

—E-QmEF —T—=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHEREE 13,663,146 13,634,368

Amortisation during the year ANFE (312,408) (312,408)

Exchange realignment EH R = 341,186

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HB&EREE 13,350,738 13,663,146
Current portion included in prepayments, st ATERIFRIE - & K EHA

deposits and other receivables JE W SR I8 B 7 D ER (D (312,408) (312,408)

Non-current portion ERBNED D 13,038,330 13,350,738

The above prepaid land lease payments represent the interests in
leasehold lands held under operating leases which are situated in
Mainland China and are held under medium term leases.

A EFEM L AERNEE L RS
REMEMRPERERSTHES -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Hth B EE
Group £
Deferred
development
costs
ELER R KA
HK$
BT
31 December 2014 —ZE-—NE+-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of accumulated R-ZT—NF— 5 —HAKA - Hkk
amortisation RS -
Amortisation provided during the year NEFHEH =
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WOFE+_HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+—_A=+—A8:
Cost %N 28,740,000
Accumulated amortisation RS (28,740,000)
Net carrying amount BREDFE =
31 December 2013 —T—=%+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of accumulated RZE—=F—A—HAKAK
amortisation ks 25T 55 317,496
Amortisation provided during the year AREF (317,496)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-H=+—H -
At 31 December 2013; R-E—=F+-_A=+—H:
Cost %N 28,740,000
Accumulated amortisation RN (28,740,000)
Net carrying amount BREDFE -

BREARERERAD
—E-MEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. B AR ZRE
Company
ATl

2014 2013

—EF-NF —F=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Unlisted shares, at cost IEEMRG  RRAE 58,999,981 58,999,981
Due from subsidiaries FEUSE B A RIFRIE 166,387,964 149,478,236
225,387,945 208,478,217

Less: Impairment of amounts due B R A R SRR A

from subsidiaries* (37,840,797) (37,840,797)
187,547,148 170,637,420

# MRNETHBARSRSER  &HEK
MEBARFEFERERE BE_F
—HOFE+—A=+—HLEFERN > IE
HE— 2 BIEHER

L Impairment was provided on amounts due from subsidiaries because
certain subsidiaries of the Company had been making losses. No further
impairment was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the investments
in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and are not
expected to be settled within one year. The carrying amounts
of these amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their
fair values.

FEWH B AR FIRAEER 28 X
BIEMN—FRER - ZFRKHBA
AR REERE A FEERS -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. B AT 2R’RE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARFFHEWOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest
registration and attributable
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
ML MR
AREH 3k BRTRAZRYG ARRMEREIERADL TEEHR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-QmE —Z-=Ff ZB-[E —T-=F%
Cokeen Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Property holding
BREREB AR B 10,0007 7T 10,0007%7C and provision of
management services
NERERERERRE
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BA 28T 28T RERR
Hideki Electronics Limited Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000  HK$2,000,000 100 100  Sale of consumer electronic
FEHETFERAR &% 2,000,000  2,000,000%7T products
HEBFHER
Hi-Tech (China) Investment Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited &% 2,000,00087%  2,000,000%7T REER
A (PE) REBRAF
Hi-Tech Investment Holdings British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 50,000% 7T 50,000 7T REER
RESEBRES /B
Hi-Tech Property Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Limited Mainland China 1£5% (B nERE
HRERRES/
AR EAE
Hi-Tech Precision Industrial Hong Kong ~ HK$1,500,000 HK$1,500,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts
Limited A% 1,500,000 1,500,000 and components
FERELEERAR HERTZHMT
Hunpex Limited Hong Kong ~ HK$4,650,000  HK$4,650,000 100 100 Investment holding
RIAEARAA &E 4,650,000 4,650,000 REAER
K & P Group (Holdings) British Virgin Islands/ US$1,238,545 US$1,238,545 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong ~ 1,238,545%7% 1,238,545 7T REER
RRERRES/BE
K. S. (China) Electronics Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Manufactory Limited B 2B 287 REER
B (hEl) BFRARAH
Mars Field Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 US$1 100 100 Investment holding
LS E YN Mainland China 1£5% (E REER
RERRRES/
SEINEP: S

BERERZERARAA

—R-mEEH




B HmRRMEE e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. B QB2 RE (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest
registration and attributable
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
MR MR
ARER b ERTRAZRG AAFERAEREA Y TEEK
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F ZB-MF _—T-=F%
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Hong Kong  HK$10,890,000  HK$10,890,000 100 100 Sale of plastic parts and
Factory Limited &% 10,890,000/ 10,890,000 7T components
HEERARBERAR HELEBT MM
Technology Trends British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts
International Limited Republic of Singapore 50,0005 7T 50,000%7T and components
RBERRES/ HERRT M
B
R (Pll) EFERAR Mainland China ~ US$8,900,000  US$8,900,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REARLAE 8,900,000  8,900,000F T of precision parts and
components
SERHERRT MY
FITERHEFERAR Mainland China  US$2,000,000  US$1,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REARLRME  2,000,000%%  1,500,000%5T of precision parts and
components
SERHERTTHMN
SmERE () BRAT Mainland China  HK$8,000,000  HK$8,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REARLFE 8,000,000  8,000,000/7T of plastic parts and
components
SLERHE BB TR
HERET (R) BRAF Mainland China ~ RMB4,000,000  RMB4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
FEARLAE 4,000,000 AR% 4,000,000\ KE consumer electronic

Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

products
SERHESTHER

BrK & P Group (Holdings) Limited 4
FHFTEMB AR BAR A MER

o

EERA  LEFHIE Y AATNEA
AXBYEIEEEERBRALEE

EFETENG -

EELRA - RER

B ABRMFHAER - 5IHATB

RITEK o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

19. IHESRRE

Group
£
2014 2013
—E2-F —E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Club membership, at fair value eHeHE  BAYEER 680,000 680,000

The fair value of the club membership is determined with
reference to the publicly available price information.

PREPAID RENT

Prepaid rent is amortised over the lease term.

e ERNATBEZSRARTEE
ZEBEER -

20. S
AR TS 2R S EEY -

INVENTORIES 21. 78

Group

58
2014 2013
—ZE—MF T =5
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials JR#E 26,961,585 27,449,585
Work in progress E&m 11,437,238 11,323,192
Finished goods BIRK 19,787,330 23,272,228
58,186,153 62,045,005
Less: Provision for slow-moving inventories i @ A #5177 & (1,632,624) (1,374,477)
56,553,529 60,670,528

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a reversal of
provision for slow-moving inventories of HK$138,324 (2013:
HK$3,266,110) had been recognised as the corresponding
inventories were either sold or used.

BE_Z-NME+_A=1+—HILFE
A BT ERERE A138,3248 T
(ZE—=% :3,266,110/7T) A
BAFEDEREELSER -

BERERZERARAA
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BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 2. BANHRE REeRHMERK
RECEIVABLES MIE
Group Company
£8 AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

—EB-NF —T—=F ZE-0NOF —T—=F

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT

Prepayments TER /IR 3,959,177 3,226,854 237,648 237,648

Deposits and other receivables &% R EAMEWFIE 6,574,015 4,804,777 7,580 7,580

10,533,192 8,031,631 245,228 245,228

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

A EEEYN EaHERIE -

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. EWERIE R i

Group
55
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —ET—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FEURBRIE 79,918,266 71,534,384
Allowance for doubtful debts REBIRE AR (822,410) (822,410)
79,095,856 70,711,974
Bills receivable discounted with recourse AR E A R U RE TR 2 iR
(note 28) (FfF5E28) 756,800 735,366
79,852,656 71,447,340

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. Invoices are normally payable within 60 days
of issuance, except for certain well-established customers, where
the terms are extended from 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management. Information regarding the concentration
risk on trade receivable is detailed in note 41. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of these balances
approximate to their fair values.

AEBEZFEERGRT  TBRXPH
FEERER  EHEP—RBEAN
A —REEFTEEANTRAZN
BREFPAZFAANTEATRERRA
k- BREFHOAEREE - AKEY
AEERURRABREZH MEREER
RAREEERR - SR EEES LA
HIR WK RS BBl - b RUCRIAR
Bz BH BN T4 - BRIRIER
BB - REHRZIREEEEAHEEM

4+

Eo
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BUIRERRE (&)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the TE R4 BAR PE W BRI 12 25 52 B B R B
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, BB 7 BRI

is as follows:
Group
58
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Within 90 days N+RA 75,175,673 67,660,689
91 to 180 days At+—Z—BNA+X 3,734,894 3,003,877
Over 180 days —ANTRNUE 185,289 47,408

79,095,856 70,711,974

An ageing analysis of the bills receivable as at the end of the ERENREWERIZEZR 2R

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DITEAT :
Group
£
2014 2013
—E-—NEF =%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 90 days N+RA 756,800 735,366

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWERIE B EE B AT
are as follows:

Group
58

2014 2013

—E—NF —T—=%F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 January n—A—H 822,410 =
Additions — business combination %Ei\g'\__%ﬁ/ﬁ\'f% = 822,410
Impairment losses recognised HRERRE 49,491 201,318
Amount written off as uncollectible s TRl Bl 2 £ &8 (49,491) (201,318)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~”H 822,410 822,410

During the year ended 31 December 2014, trade receivables HE-_Z-—MF+_A=+—HILFE

amounted to HK$49,491 (2013: HK$201,318) was written off, A EWERIE M 249,49 B T(ZF

which is related to customers that were in financial difficulties. — =% :201,318%7) ' RELEF
BEEEMBERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. ERRER ZEE (&)
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not KRR ARERERERE R ZE 7 R
considered to be impaired is as follows: DT :
Group
L]
2014 2013
—B-NF —F=F
HK$ HK$
BT I
Neither past due nor impaired R B IR Ve (E 58,884,105 52,014,867
Less than 1 month past due #E DR —18 A 15,340,896 14,451,922
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z= =18 A 5,114,812 3,986,808
3 to 6 months past due B =258 A 512,843 993,743

79,852,656 71,447,340

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a KRBT ARERERERIRIBERZEAS
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no TREFER ZERPILHLIENTE
recent history of default. BESL o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a B ERE R VB E R R ERIE T 2 A= B
number of independent customers that have a good track record AEBEERURFHHEMNB LR < 1B
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the BRTKESR  NAREETRREMEZE
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment EATEFEELRERE  TRZE
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been EPMEEESWEEANEEMZLE
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still IR AR BRI A2 EUR B - AL ES
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any % A ERE IR (R R s A 308
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. EELHE -
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. e RBATEEHIRAE
Group Company
&8 AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-RmE —T=F ZB-RE —T-=F

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE 35,305,971 42,945,830 54,726 110,222
Time deposits EHER - 12,700,000 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReFEEE 35,305,971 55,645,830 54,726 110,222
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

25.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$8,932,010 (2013: HK$24,184,820). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

B HmRMEE e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-—NE+-_A=+—HBILFE

Year ended 31 December 2014

2. BERBEEEER (&)

AEBUARETA

REDFEZBEERBEITEL A
8,932,010 T( = & — = £ :
24,184,820 7L) - ARETREBHRRL
HE A S AR R B K FE SNE B il

ERTE R AT

CHERINNEER

E o AREEEERERBEEBINE
B2 RITHAREHIBRINE o

RITBE MMM ETZE HRITER
MEZFHFIRME - RITEABFE
BEEEBEMNRT  OHYEERC

ﬁo

25. FEfYARIE

FEREREMNRRRER A RR

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AT
Group
&8

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within 90 days AtTRA 42,645,750 44,674,862
91 to 180 days NT+—RE—BANTK 1,331,283 3,513,618
Over 180 days —BNTRHUE 21,172 308,605

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days.

43,998,205 48,497,085

ENERARRER—BRATE—E=

TREHEE -

BERERZERARAA

—R-mEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-T-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Year

ended 31 December 2014

26. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EstEERHMENSKIE
Group Company
=] NS
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EBE-NFE —T—=F ZE-0NF —T—=F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Deposits received and BYRE Rk
accrued liabilities fEEtEE 2,039,508 2,231,907 = =
Other payables H At fE T 30I8 16,899,038 15,855,382 154,116 677,716
Staff cost payables ERE TR 32,199,748 30,018,749 79,890 76,074
Due to subsidiaries JER B R 5B = - 83,272,291 66,782,704

27.

51,138,294 48,106,038 83,506,297 67,536,494

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

term of three months.

HiENFIRARE R FHEFH A=
@A -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. TTEER T A
Group
58
2014 2013
b E —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets: MBNEE :
Forward currency contracts RHIEE SR = 3,153,075
Current liabilities: ﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ\f
Forward currency contracts RHIER AR 256,447 -

The carrying amount of forward currency contracts are the same

as their fair values. The Group entered into two forward ¢
contracts of US$7,250,000 each (2013: three forward ¢

urrency
urrency

contracts of US$14,500,000, US$6,423,742 and US$7,250,000
respectively) for the exchange of United States Dollars (“US$")
with Renminbi (“RMB"). The maturity dates of these forward

currency contracts are 18 February 2015 and 19 Marc

h 2015

respectively (2013: 6 June 2014, 29 August 2014 and 17
October 2014 respectively). The forward rates of these forward
currency contracts range from RMB6.1150 to RMB6.2150 (2013:

RMB6.1365 to RMB6.2320) per US$1.

REEEARZEREERAEEATE
B AEBEETMMHET(EITD A
RE(T AR¥ )% /7,250,000F L H
RHEBAER(ZZE—=F: =HH 5
414,500,000 JT * 6,423,742 7t &
7,250,000 THIRIEEER) - 2%
EHEBERCHHASAAZSE—H
F_AF+NAR=_Z—HF=ZAT+HAH
—E—=F:HRAZZT—HFA
N ZE-UFNAZ+TNAAR=ZE
—mFE+A+ER)  ZRERPEEKS
Rz =HAEXRESGE AR F1ETH6.1150
ARBZE62150A\RE(ZF—=
6.1365 AR %E6.2320 A\RH¥) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) — 27. T @ T R (&)

As at 31 December 2014, the forward currency contracts did not R-ZE—NFE+—_A=1+—H %R
meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The change in the fair HER AR AFTA e EmE
value of these non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to a £ o ZEIRHAEB 2 ITETENRT
loss of HK$256,447 was recognised in the income statement for BEZEE E18/A256,44778 T © #E
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: gain of HK$3,153,075). REHE-_ZT—HWNF+-_A=1+—H8H1

EEZFERNCE—=F: %45
3,153,075/ 7T) °

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FRBITREMESR
BORROWINGS
Group £E
2014 —E-—mE
Effective
interest rate
(%)
per annum  Maturity HK$
BERERIR%  FHA BT
Current
5
Finance lease payables (note 29) 1.45-4.25  Fully repayable from 20/1/2015 to 10/11/2018 9,012,626
FERT A& E (FiFE29) 2HEEH-_F-AF—H=1tHZE
—2-N\F+-AtH
Bank loans — discounted bills 2.45-2.47  Fully repayable from 26/1/2015 to 9/3/2015 756,800
with recourse (note 23) E2YEBRA-_E-RE—HA-1+~AZE
RITER— AREMARER —Z-RF=AAIH
(Bt&E23)
Revolving term loans — unsecured 2.88-3.53  Fully repayable on 16/6/2015 11,000,000
RERAHER — EER ZEEER-Z-RFXATAA
Instalment loans — unsecured 3.20-3.23  Fully repayable on 29/1/2018 7,625,718
DEE R — EEA 2HEER=-_Z-N\F—H=1ThH
28,395,144

Non-current

FEH
Finance lease payables (note 29) 1.45-3.50  Fully repayable from 31/7/2017 to 10/11/2018 18,961,148
FERRARE(HE29) PHEEBH =B tFLA=+—BZ

—2-\¥+-AtH

47,356,292

BERERZERARAA

—R-mEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

28. HFEHRITREMEE (&)

Group £5
2013 —ET—=F
Effective
interest rate
(%)
per annum  Maturity HK$
BEREFE%  FIHR AT
Current
AH
Finance lease payables (note 29) 1.45-4.25  Fully repayable on 20/1/2015 and 9/6/2018 2,743,945
FERRI BT E (FIFE29) 2EEEBN_FT—AF—A=-1tHRK
—ZE-N\FXANA
Bank loans - discounted bills with 2.21  Fully repayable on 10/2/2014 and 28/2/2014 735,366
recourse (note 23) FEEBEN_ZT—NF_A+BK
RITER— AROEMARER —E-WF-A=+\H
(BF7E23)
Revolving term loans — unsecured 3.41  Fully repayable on 23/1/2014 and 19/3/2014 14,000,000
RERAHER— EER 2YEER-_T-—MF-—A=+=HK
—Z-ME=A+NH
Instalment loans — unsecured 2.90-3.26  Fully repayable on 21/12/2014 and 29/1/2018 11,632,694
DEES — EER EHEER-_T-MF+_A-+—HK
“Z-N\F-AZtAhH
29,112,005
Non-current
L N-E
Finance lease payables (note 29) 1.45-4.25  Fully repayable on 20/1/2015 and 9/6/2018 1,677,187
JERTRE B & (FiFr29) PHEER_ZT-AF-A-THK
—E-N\FXANA
30,789,192
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FRBITRHEMEE #)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Group
&8
2014 2013
—2-nmF —F=F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Carrying amount repayable: EEE 2 REE :
Within one year —FR 28,395,144 29,112,005
More than one year, but not exceeding ZR—F - BTNEBAMRE
two years 9,111,078 604,354
More than two years, but not more than ZRME - BAZRAF
five years 9,850,070 1,072,833
47,356,292 30,789,192
Note: The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings in the amount W AEEB2HSRTREMEBEESR
of HK$5,234,516 (2013: HK$9,941,046) which would otherwise be 5234516% w( = T — = &F:
classified as a non-current liability have been classified as a current 9,941,046/ 7T ) FER] D B R IETREN B
liability because their terms include an on-demand clause. For the & EBESHEARDEERABS KR
purpose of the above analysis, the loan is included within current EREEMGRR - £ LR DHTH
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and analysed into bank BEROe RS RRITREMES -
loans and other borrowings repayable within one year or on demand. WA A —FRKIRERKEZENRTT
BRREMBEE -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate AEBEEZRAMAEEE AT EEN
to their fair values. = o

BREARERERAD
—E-MEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

29. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payments under finance leases and their present values

are as follows:

29. ENREHEE

RBEMR - REBEBO T AR
BR&IEEERLRERSELT

Group
£8
Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payables lease payments
BOHEER BOHEEANESHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F ZB-OF —T-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Total minimum finance lease BETRN—FNENRD
payments payable within one year BEMAEZEFR 9,946,632 2,866,356 9,012,626 2,743,945
Total minimum finance lease BETRE—EFAFN
payments payable in the second ~ ENZIRERE
to fifth years BH 19,973,504 1,770,012 18,961,148 1,677,187
29,920,136 4,636,368 27,973,774 4,421,132
Future finance charges Bi&B &R (1,946,362) (215,236)
Total net finance lease payables — [EffRIETHELFHE 27,973,774 4,421,132
Total net finance lease payables — #H2EARBEEZ
which are classified as current B RERERFE
liabilities (9,012,626)  (2,743,945)
Total net finance lease payables WA MEAFRBAEZ
which are classified as non- i RERERFE
current liabilities 18,961,148 1,677,187
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

29. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into six sale and leaseback arrangements with a finance
company (“Finance Lease A”) for certain lots of machineries. The
aggregate amount of cash received from the Finance Lease A was
HK$31,418,538. Principals of Finance Lease A are repayable in
36 and 48 monthly instalments together with finance charges at
Prime rate minus 1.75% and Prime rate minus 2.00% per annum
respectively, with purchase options at the end of the leases at a
minimal value of purchase price. The Group also entered into two
hire purchase arrangements with a finance company (“Finance
Lease B"”) to acquire two motor vehicles with a total capital
value at the inception of the leases of HK$1,024,064 in which
HK$964,004 was received from the finance lease. Principals of
Finance Lease B are repayable in 48 monthly instalments together
with finance charges at 1.75% per annum. The ownership of
the motor vehicles will be transferred to the Group by the end
of the lease term.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered
into a hire purchase arrangement with a finance company
("Finance Lease C"”) to acquire a motor vehicle at a consideration
of HK$1,865,008. Principal of Finance Lease C is repayable by 54
monthly instalments together with finance charges at 1.45% per
annum. The ownership of the motor vehicle will be transferred
to the Group by the end of the lease term.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment held under finance leases, and was
therefore pledged, was HK$35,481,158 (2013: HK$6,697,113).

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

29. BYREHEE#®)

HE_Z-—MNME+-_A=+—HI%F
EA - ASEE-SREEER 9D
BB HE(RERSEADRET
s ZRMEREAZREBRES
31,418,538 - BIEHEAZ RS E
B BEAD IR ERFFIER1.75
[E & 5 1B 2 F F =52 .00F W JA36 K&
A8(E A » HAEE - R E &R BT
LRI B 2 SRR - ANEE R —
S REERT MDD BN R &
AMER]) BRBEMIDRE « Mt
HEZ WmBEENEER,024,0647%5
70 H At E A E W E A964,004
B MEMRERZ A BERMBKE
F 1% & F| % 1.75[F W0 A48(8 A o Hi(8
8 NHEIGRAERE 25 A5EA
S EEEAREE o

HE—Z-=F+-HA=+—HItEE
A ANEEE—SREERI Do H
NEpZE((REREC])  AREE—
BT B (B A1,865,0085% 7T © @l & A
EC RS ER M ERIREFE.45
[E 37 ASAME A o HiEE - REKRK
HERE ZAIERERESERELRE
o

R-ZE—NE+—_A=+—H  K&EE
ERERETHEZYE  BERE
B 7 2 SR 435,481,158/ 7T(
—E =% :6,697,11387T) °

BERERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. IEAERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the AREBRZELEHREEEREEZEDHN
year are as follows: T:
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEESE
Group £5
2014 —E-mE

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
EHERETEZ
ERE YIEE M st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—MFE—A—H 808,763 7,695,145 8,503,908
Deferred tax debited to equity REERERRZ
during the year RETIE - 791,416 791,416
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 R=Z—MF+— A
December 2014 = +t—HZEERE
A& 808,763 8,486,561 9,295,324
Group &=
2013 —E—=F
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
BB E
ERE YIS E wEr
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BIT BIT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 789,795 4,831,665 5,621,460
Deferred tax debited to the REZRFBERIIG 2
income statement FEERTE (FEE11)
during the year (note 11) 18,968 - 18,968
Deferred tax debited to equity NEERRESHIG 2
during the year RIER TR = 2,863,480 2,863,480
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-_ZT—=%F+—A4
at 31 December 2013 =+—HZIEE
THIB A ERE 808,763 7,695,145 8,503,908
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. IEERIE(E)
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Group
&5

Losses available for offsetting
against future taxable profits

AR A RERBUEFINER

2014 2013

—ET-mF —F=%F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 434,200 514,989
Deferred tax charged to the income REFERFERINGR 2

statement during the year (note 11) FEEFRIE (FIsE11) (434,200) (80,789)

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December RA+Z—HA=+—8B2~
BIETRIBEEHBRE - 434,200

Pursuant to the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been recognised for
such withholding taxes that would be payable on the retained
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China that are subject to withholding taxes at distribution. In the
opinion of the directors, these accumulated profits, at the present
time, are required for financing the continuing operations of the
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of retained earnings associated
with these subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$8,855,656 at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$7,686,801).

REBEHECEMSBOE - P BEARRERK
YHHINERE R AN EREE TR
BB AE10%E R TAINHE © LR E @
—TENF-A-BRER  WEAR
“EEHF+T A=+ —BENER -
fief o B APk BRSO B $2°8  B RARE IR AT
BERBHE - A EARENTRAR
o At - NEEBEERN T BEARE
RYBZERBRARN _ETNF—A
— BERELMEMPTD IR RS TR
L

RZE—NF+=-_A=+—8  LEHR
ANEEEF B ARERY 2B A RBR
RE B 5 IR FTER < TR FERIE L
TiIE - EFERARB A ALZERR
FIEATRARFECEERRE - WEA
FERARKBETMEDIR - RZZT—HF+
ZA=1+—8 W WEERERETBEARE
MEARREAFREZEEREARE
42 5T 498,855,656/ 8 L( =& — = 4F :
7,686,801/ 7T) °

BERERZERARAA

—R-mEEH
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BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. EERIE(Z)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIBEEE (&)
At 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H ' ~x&EH
HK$11,396,000 (2013: HK$5,127,000) available for offsetting PR HA AT I A 2 P R S B 2 RER TR
against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. F B EHE 511,396,000 (=2 —=
No deferred tax assets have been recognised because it is not #F 5,127,000 L) - HRAEE K
expected that future taxable profits will be available against which RETEHAR] £ A2 S se A EIR A FE 3R
the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. FoaFl » Ft WA ERIELERIEE
E o
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment AN &) A IR BR AT 2 A% B i A 1a)
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. FTiSTiaR
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. R
Group and Company
SERAF
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Shares % 12
Authorised: EERA -
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,0003% & AR E &
0.108 7T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REERA
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each 267,004,800/ =R E &
0.108 7T 26,700,480 26,700,480
Share options BE IR AE
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in RANB 2 IBIERTE 2515 - BEERA
note 32 to the financial statements. BTSRRI E32 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
with effect from 23 May 2012. A summary of the Scheme is as
follows:

Purposes To provide incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Participants (i) any employee (whether full-
time or part-time), executive
directors, non-executive
directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;
any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity; any
person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;
and

(iii) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

32. EIRRESTHE

RARBHRAN-—ZE——FRA-_+=
B A4S BT S (GTE)) - s 3IBE
U

Ek:y RBEEHBEERERSEA
THASEERZER RS
X 15 BY AN SR I B 5E K% B (Rt
BREEMTMHAREEET
(A 7565 B 555 8 ELAL (A B AN 1
w2 RE([FIRERE]AE
EXEBEZANER -

2EAL () ARDF - HEMHER
A EEAMTERQR
ZEMEE (THREZE
R  MITES I
MITES MBI IFHTT
%

(i MAEEEMKERAF
LR TR E A RR T
B sk AR 7% < (] L e
i ANEE S EM TR
BRAIZAMNEE : [
REBSEMTIEER
AR - AR E
fth $x 0T 2 3% 2 R A+
EY/NCI

(i) AEBEMKERBX
EAAIRE AR ZAEM
BRI A KEERIKE
RAEREMATRE QA
PR E TR & 75 2 (£ 1A
FAA °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BIRERTE(2)

Total number of ordinary 26,700,480 ordinary shares and A] FEITHIE  26,700,4800% X i A%
shares available for issue 10% of the issued share capital. E AR LA EA BEBETRAZ
and the percentage of RERAREF 10% °
the issued share capital WHEBMLE
that it represents as at AT
the date of the annual Aokt
report

Maximum entitlement of ~ Shall not exceed 1% of the issued BER2HEALT ZEEMAIZEARN - T
each participant share capital of the Company in AR FHBARQADE

any 12-month period. FR TREZ1% °

Period within which the An option may be exercised at AIREESE BEBRERNESTR
securities must be taken any time during a period to S B SR A% A2 e S &R
up under an option be determined and notified by AR 1 B HARR A Z Hi A ] B

the directors to each grantee, MEITE - HEE
but shall end in any event not AER T T EER
later than 10 years from the B I% AR B A
date of the grant of options HBET10F (ARIEZAT
subject to the provisions for early SEF MR R4 E
termination thereof. REAREE BIRRSN) o

Minimum period for which ~ There is no minimum period for BETE Y RKEBRETEITE
an option must be held which an option granted must be FIPAYE =2 Z B RFE A R &
before it can be exercised  held before it can be exercised. HY fx 52 HAPR XS HARR o

Amount payable on The offer of a grant of share options BEANEEIRREE AR AR RN IR R
acceptance may be accepted within 28 days &% BEZ AR -1

from the date of the offer with a NBR EXFE
consideration of HK$1.00 being ERE £ 51.00/8
payable by the grantee. TR NR R o

Period within which Not applicable. TREGRESN TER -
payments/calls/loans FREY AR X
must be made/repaid BERBE

A & 5RHY
HARR
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33.

B HmRMEE e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Basis of determining the  Determined by the directors but shall
exercise price not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the ordinary
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the offer of options,
which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the
ordinary shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of
the offer of options; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The remaining life of the ~ The Scheme remains in force until
Scheme 22 May 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled,
forfeited or expired during the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 and there was no outstanding share option as at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 44
and 45 of the financial statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of the net
proceeds or consideration from issuance of the Company’s
shares over their par value.

The share option reserve of the Group is used to recognise
the value of equity-settled share-based payment transactions
provided to participants under the schemes, the details of
which are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

32.

33.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

BRETE(2)

TEENEE BEFRE ELNSF
HE BERTIHZ2ES
EF DR REH
BREZZEER(A
BRHA) 2 WHE
(LA B 32 P B R %
FEERE) (i)
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#ZAAERERSA

2 U (& (AR
RETAMEREE
B2 RGN
HE -

HEESRNE FFEAREBE—_ZT—
WBER —#RAA=-+=H
_Ito

BRESHAALTZERERSHIRN
BRE ERE 2 s

BE-—T-—MFF-—A=+—ALFE
A T 1THE S MERE
HHERERN - E—NER =T —=
FH-—A=+—8 @BENBHZER
#E o

E
(a) &

RERRANFEREZ RS EHE
& o IRER )N g
RASEZ iR AR EER -

B g EREZRTARARNE
KB AFEKIREEBE
[ER= =

ARG B2 AR 2 I RERR
W h R 2 8 A T UARAL
BN RH2EE  BEFSE
EFNAFBRAMFEI2 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

33. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Group (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of
the Group’s reorganisation and represents the excess of the
nominal value of the share capital of the former holding
company of the Group, K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, prior
to the Group’s reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1996, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid
shares issued on the incorporation of the Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used to record
the increases in the fair value of land and buildings and the
decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an
increase on the same asset previously recognised in equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is used to
record exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

33. @)
(a) &@(#)

AEBZHBABRBRREEEEE
B DESEER-NANAANERE
BARQR KD ET 2 EMEAA
S8 ZAER AR K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited & AE{ESR
RRARARBZERG MBEITR
NEBEMZHZ @ 8RE RN
RPN N/N s 31 D VA k3
TRBFBRD 2 SFE -

rEEZEEEGLRBIAFEL
BT REFRAFEEBZEM
HERIEERBRDAEBBER
NFEEZEINMERN D
HREE

AEEZERRBFEBIEARE
BB EIBIMNEE R BB RK M
EEMERER -

Company (b) BF
Retained
Share profits/
premium Contributed (Accumulated
account surplus losses) Total
REEH,/
RO EER BARR (RiEBR) @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 W-E—=%—f—H 50,856,881 49,999,981  (24,795,905) 76,060,957
Profit for the year and total KEERFINAEE
comprehensive income for the year 2ENAESE = - 16,835,035 16,835,035
Interim dividend paid (note 13) AR EARR 2 (P3E13) - - (5340,09)  (5,340,09)
Final dividend proposed (note 13) BREASPRE (W513) - - (10,680,192) (10,680,192)
At 31 December 2013 W-_T—=%
+-A=1+—H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (23,981,158) 76,875,704
Profit for the year and total IEERFRAEE
comprehensive income for the year FHKALE - - 12,104,717 12,104,717
Interim dividend paid (note 13) TARRERR S (3E13) - - (5340,09) (5,340,09)
Final dividend proposed (note 13) BEABRE (M3213) - - (5340,096) (5,340,096)
At 31 December 2014 RoE—mE
+-A=1+—H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (22,556,633) 78,300,229

K & P International Holdings Limited
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33.

34.

B HmRMEE e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the underlying consolidated net assets of K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries at the date on which the
Group’s reorganisation became effective, referred to in note 33(a),
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay up the
nil-paid shares issued on the incorporation of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus in certain circumstances. As at 31 December
2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$32,783,444 (2013:HK$36,699,015).

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements
in respect of two motor vehicles with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of HK$1,024,064 of which HK$60,000

33

34.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

. it ()

ANARIZ BIANFIETE K & P Group (Holdings)
Limited REMBARINEEEHE K
HZFEaBEFEREARARIPAEITN
R|ZARIRAEEZ ©E(FIEEHE
KGR EMFE33() - BMEBREAR
LA AR Bz s Bk 2 B BT 1T R 84
R 2 2FE e

BEARE- NN —FRAREA(EE
2]) ZFFA] - AN A A] AR A L E R T
BMABGBFBRARAEXBIEHDIK °
R-_E—NWE+_A=+—H &R
AREBEERE—NN\—FRAaE(EE
FD)THEE - A RARFED IR
# 532,783,444 (=& — =
36,699,015/87T) °

FEFRERSH

REER  AEER—DAEBMITS
B YR EERE(E,024,06478 TTH EL
EHREWzE - EPRRES I A60,000

was settled by cash and HK$964,064 was settled by finance BT R EVE T E kX 5 /R964,06475
lease arrangements. JC °
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. RAE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RIREEIR » MARREITSRR IS
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: HsKARBENT :
Group Company
£ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mE —T-=F ZEB-RmE —T-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Guarantees of loan facilities BT WEAR#R
granted to subsidiaries BERER - - 221,560,000 168,814,448

RZEBE—mWE+=—A=+—H &2
AIARIT R E M B EER T ER
KB ARZEREREY BEF
F 4945,723,000%8 t( =& — =
26,368,000/87T) °

As at 31 December 2014, the loan facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks and other
financial institution by the Company were utilised to the extent
of approximately HK$45,723,000 (2013: HK$26,368,000).

BERERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 2014

36

37.

38.

. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and factories
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and
factories are negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

36.

REHERH

ARERBEERERHERETHA
T RES - ZERAY RS
HEFINF—ERETE -

RI|ERR - AEERBETEDUHL S
HEZ A RREENEERREN TSI
HARI 2 -

Group
£:

2014 2013

—EF-—nmF —T=FF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year R—FA 2,297,780 2,424,057
In the second to fifth years, inclusive RE—E=FRF

(BIEEEMT) 2,443,309 4,731,350

4,741,089 7,155,407

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no operating
lease arrangements.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company
did not have any capital commitments.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

37.

38.

RBEYR - AR ELLEHE 2%
B

A

RERR - NEE RAR B EER
BEALRS
AEERETIEEEABZEHM :

2014 2013

—E-NF —E—=fF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short term employee benefits 5 HE Bt A 10,335,680 11,441,328

Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RIREF|FHEIHE 50,250 34,499

Total compensation paid to key management %4 T = Z & A B 7 42 5REM

personnel 10,385,930 11,475,827

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 INCUE 2

to the financial statements.

EREEHE 2B B S
FHIFE9 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. TR TENSE

)
RBERR - @RI ESHARINKREE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
Group &8
2014 —_E—_MF
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
EXK AHHE
FEUWBR TR SWMEE st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT I I
Financial assets: CREE
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
investment - 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERENTIE - Bk
prepayments, deposits and HiEWHIE & REE
other receivables (note 22) (PFit7E22) 993,044 = 993,044
Trade and bills receivables FEUERIE R 2 79,852,656 = 79,852,656
Cash and cash equivalents RebkFeSMEEE 35,305,971 = 35,305,971
116,151,671 680,000 116,831,671
Financial
liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities at through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
KB
REBHEARIE RATFEREIER
ZemB s ZEemas st
HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial liabilities: SRIBE
Trade payables FETBRIE 43,998,205 - 43,998,205
Financial liabilities included in BEREFTAEREAM
accrued liabilities and ENFIEz CREE
other payables (note 26) (Fzx26) 11,366,321 - 11,366,321
Derivative financial instrument PTEERT A - 256,447 256,447
Interest-bearing bank and ELRITREMBEE
other borrowings 47,356,292 - 47,356,292
102,720,818 256,447 102,977,265

BERERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. EMTENSE (&)
(continued)
Group £F
2013 —E—=4F
Financial
assets at
fair value Available-for-
through Loans and  sale financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
K=
EATEES Rk A E
ReemEE FEMBR TR TREE FEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets: SREE
Available-for-sale financial investment A& 4 g1EE = = 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERENTIE  RE R
prepayments, deposits and other H At UGB 2
receivables (note 22) cREE (MiE22) = 3,261,788 = 3,261,788
Derivative financial instruments TESMTA 3,153,075 - - 3,153,075
Trade and bills receivables iGN ES - 71,447,340 - 71,447,340
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEER - 55,645,830 - 55,645,830
3,153,075 130,354,958 680,000 134,188,033
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
T SH A AN
HERZ
L =Cr 5T
HK$ HK$
BIT BIT
Financial liabilities: EHEE
Trade payables FETERTE 48,497,085 48,497,085
Financial liabilities included in accrued BEREFAEREMERNFKIA
liabilities and other payables (note 26) ZemaE (KsE2e) 6,911,086 6,911,086
Interest-bearing bank and HEIRITREMEER
other borrowings 30,789,192 30,789,192

86,197,363 86,197,363

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

30. TR T EMSE (&)

(continued)
Company
AT
Loans and receivables
ERKEWIRR
2014 2013
—E—NF =%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: TREE
Financial assets included in prepayment, BERBATE - B REMER
deposits and other receivables (note 22) HEZEeREE (FHF22) 7,580 7,580
Dividend receivable FEUT A% B 6,000,000 10,800,000
Due from subsidiaries (note 18) JFE U BT B A Bl sk IE (FIRE18) 128,547,167 111,637,439
Cash and cash equivalents Re kA EEIEE 54,726 110,222
134,609,473 122,555,241
Company
AT
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERRIRE2EHAE
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities: SHMEE
Financial liabilities included in accrued BERETAEREMERK
liabilities and other payable (note 26) HzemaE (ME2e) 154,116 407,716
Due to subsidiaries (note 26) B ARIRIE (H5E26) 83,272,291 66,782,704
83,426,407 67,190,420

At 31 December2014 and 2013, the Company provided guarantees
to banks in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries
repayable on demand of approximately HK$45,723,000 and
HK$26,368,000 respectively. The Company has not recognised a
value for the financial guarantees given in the financial statements
as their fair values as assessed by the directors are insignificant

and their transaction price is nil.

R_E—NER-_ZT—=F+_A=+
—H ' ARARARITRTFLEEENEA
AIREREENEREEERSANA
45,723,000 7T £226,368,000/8 JT ° A
A AN AR A B TS R 3R P R R L B A TR AR

[l BEFFERAAFEELTES

METAXZEM -

BERERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 40. X FEEE
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the AEBEEAAREHIENKREABELA
Company’s financial instruments are as follows: FEEMT :
Group
55
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AVEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —ZE—-F Z—T-0mOF —T—=F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BT
Financial assets: EWMEE
Available-for-sale financial AEHESmMIEE
investment 680,000 680,000 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERENFIE &

prepayments, deposits and © & HAb EURIE
other receivables (note 22) ZEMEE

(FfF5E22) 993,044 3,261,788 993,044 3,261,788
Derivative financial instruments {7448 T A - 3,153,075 - 3,153,075
Trade and bills receivables FEUBRTIE & =45 79,852,656 71,447,340 79,852,656 71,447,340
Cash and cash equivalents HeMELEMEER 35,305,971 55,645,830 35,305,971 55,645,830

116,831,671 134,188,033 116,831,671 134,188,033

Group
£8
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ATEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —T=-F =—ZET-0OF —T=
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial liabilities: S@mas:
Trade payables FEf BRI 43,998,205 48,497,085 43,998,205 48,497,085
Financial liabilities included in ~ B&RETEER
accrued liabilities and other Hib e FIE
payables (note 26) TRBE(MFE26) 11,366,321 6,911,086 11,366,321 6,911,086
Derivative financial instruments $74 &g T & 256,447 - 256,447 =
Interest-bearing bank and EERITREMEE
other borrowings 47,356,292 30,789,192 47,356,292 30,789,192

102,977,265 86,197,363 102,977,265 86,197,363
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 40. AFEEEFE (&)
Company
AF]
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AFEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —T=F ZT-0mF —T-=
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BIT
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets included in BERTENRIE - &
prepayments, deposits and & & HAb FEUGRIE
other receivables (note 22) ZEREE
(PfF5E22) 7,580 7,580 7,580 7,580
Dividend receivable FEW AR B 6,000,000 10,800,000 6,000,000 10,800,000
Due from subsidiaries (note 18) FEUHIE A FIFIE
(FF5E18) 128,547,167 111,637,439 128,547,167 111,637,439
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIFSFEIER 54,726 110,222 54,726 110,222

134,609,473 122,555,241 134,609,473 122,555,241

Company
AT
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AREE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F ZF-OF —T-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT ABIT BT BT
Financial liabilities: SEAsE:
Financial liabilities included in B EREFEER
accrued liabilities and other HEMENFIEZ
payables (note 26) cHa’E (MiF26) 154,116 407,716 154,116 407,716
Due to subsidiaries (note 26)  FETHTE A RIKIA
(PFi4zE26) 83,272,291 66,782,704 83,272,291 66,782,704
83,426,407 67,190,420 83,426,407 67,190,420
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included Mogias SR EEN)  eREAEREE
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in AT EERBHBRIAS 2 M#ETH
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a BRGHRAZHBE)DRE o

forced or liquidation sale.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 40. AP EEFTE (&)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables, dividend receivable, amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries are approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments on similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair
value or which fair values are required to be disclosed in these
financial statements on a recurring basis at 31 December 2014
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS
13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs are
defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

ATNIAERBRE ARG AFEE :

RehkBReFEHE  BUREARE
B ENERERE SREESRBEMNK
B ReREMEEFIR eRAEe
SEAABREMENRE  BEK
B BRUHBARRARENKEAR
FREAREEABRS - RER2LE
TABREHRAZIE -

FERTEEAMEENAHEESESR
RAZIRE R - EERR KRS HH
PR AZR Rl 3k T R SR AT IR RITIRfE5T
BRASREFTH -

T E2REBEERBBEZ AFEER
EFHR-_FT-—NF+-_A=+—8BZ
MBEBRREZIRBEBUERELERE
13595 : AEBEFE EBEEEM
AENAFEESAN=FEER M2
FEEZENERBEEEENEES
THAEEBOEMET - TBAZSE
BEZRAT :

F-R(EFER): AEEEFERE
SHEREEXAR
BB S 2 WIE
(RIEAE):

- BE-RMEREZ
WESN - BEEXEA
BRI EZRAEEE
RELZBA

FR(RESFR): BEABEREEXA
BzBA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities
measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

40.

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

DR EEFTEE)

TRBREAFEEFENEERA
8 WEAFHEESRDBZ DM

Group £H
2014 —=-mE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E_R E=R st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets: SREE
Available-for-sale financial AEHESRHEE
investment:
— Club membership — e
— outside Hong Kong —BAZEI 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and building: i RIETF
Commercial - Hong Kong EE-BB - 47,100,000 - 47,100,000
Industrial - outside Hong Kong T3 —&#&HH - - 69,150,000 69,150,000
Financial liabilities: S@Aas:
Financial liabilities at fair value R N THEETER
through profit or loss: ZEemasE:
Derivative financial TESRMIE
instruments
— Forward currency —RHIEK
contracts & - 256,447 - 256,447

BREARERERAD
—E-MEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

40. A EEFE®E)

Group £5
2013 —T=%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& ER E=% et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial asset: CREE :
Financial assets at fair value iERRATEER
through profit or loss: CERMEE :
Derivative financial TESBMIE
instruments
— Forward currency —RHIEK
contracts G = 3,153,075 - 3,153,075
Available-for-sale financial AHESREE
investment:
— Club membership —e2Mek
- outside Hong Kong —BBHEI 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and building: THREF
Commercial - Hong Kong BE-—BB - 46,700,000 - 46,700,000

Industrial - outside Hong Kong TE-HBHEIN

69,150,000 69,150,000

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The Company did not have any assets and liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

HE_Z—NMF+_A=+—HILFE
N AV EEFES-RARE-RZE
WEEFER - AEE =R FEER
BZBANE -

R-E—NER-—T—=F+-"F=+
— B - RAFEEAIR AT EBESE
ZEERARE-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 40. AP EETE (&)

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements

B=MAFEETEZEE

2014

—Z-IF

Total

#at

HK$

Description 3t AT

At beginning of the reporting period MRS B 69,150,000

Depreciation debited to profit or loss BRENGRITE (1,835,369)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to HEMEEBRAGTAZEGBATEEB

other comprehensive income & 1,835,369

At the end of the reporting period R EHAR 69,150,000
Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period — ZNHARS @ IEEIBZER MR RS HIEK
included in profit or loss held at the end of the BH 2 RER WS EE 2 B E)

reporting period -

2013

—E-=F

Total

Bt

HK$

Description it BIT

At beginning of the reporting period PA 3 25 B 9] 66,465,000

Depreciation debited to profit or loss B IR 2 ITE (1,793,377)

Exchange realignment credited to Hoth 2 EAGT A Z SNE T EE

other comprehensive income 1,752,521
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to other HEMEEBRAGTAZEGBATEEB

comprehensive income & 2,725,856

At the end of the reporting period R EHR 69,150,000

Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period
included in profit or loss held at the end of the
reporting period

AHRBREEERRMNRE R
RAZARBERKANERZES

BERERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 fair value measurement

a)

b)

Derivative financial instruments

As described in note 27, at the end of the reporting period,
the derivative financial instruments held by the Group
represent forward currency contracts. The fair value of
forward currency contracts is measured by comparing the
contracted forward rates and the quoted forward exchange
rates for the remaining contractual maturity, by the same
bank, which are observable at the end of the reporting
period.

Properties located in Hong Kong

The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by
Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professional
qualified valuers, on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, which is based on market observable
transactions of similar properties and adjusted for differences
in key valuation attributes, such as size and age to reflect
the conditions of the subject properties.

Description of the valuation techniques used in Level
3 fair value measurement

a)

Properties located in People’s Republic of China

The fair value of the properties located in People’s
Republic of China was revalued by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professional qualified valuers,
using Depreciated Replacement Cost Approach. The valuer
considered the subject properties are specialised properties
for which there is no readily market observable transaction
of similar properties. The estimation of fair value of the
subject properties took into account their current cost of
replacement or reproduction, less deduction for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation.

40. A EEFE®E)
BREESERAAE-RATLE

EHFtEz@A
a) ITETEIA
M 272 RREHKR

b)

AEBEFEZMEEHIAEER
HEkaR 2HE¥aRZA
FEESLREMARRITENE
SRR ABEZEHAREX
EHETARZBAEZEHARRK
BEXEMTE

WREEZ Y=
NREBZMEHBELEXEGE
RGEMEETRALRTISE
BT ABHMGE BABELZ
MBERNER S MRRZYE
AR ERBETEWRNRE
e MEHFEHZBRE -

HILANE=M AV EETE 2
=0:P73

a)

R A 2 5

RPBEREZMERBLIEE
EERMGEMEETRANES
ERAEEFHGE - HEMEE
NZMEZBENE  mHELEYE
ABREZBRMERS - wibE
ZMEZAVEBERZEZREN
EEREERA  HIREERL
kewAERANEE REL -
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Notes to Financial Statements T

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair
value measurement, including the description of the sensitivity to
changes in unobservable inputs for recurring Level 3 fair value
measurements, are as follows:

BE_Z-NF+_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

40. AV EERTE (&)

BEIOREETEEN AR
AREFE=SRQFEEFEZMEE
BE
EZEZERTEEN B AREARR
F=FMAVHEEFEZGHETE &
RALEBEEIBERAZFE=FR
R EEEZGREESINT

Sensitivity of
Fair value at fair value to changes in
Description 31 December 2014 Valuation techniques Unobservable input unobservable inputs
R=2-BF+=A BEEZRAL
it ST-RRAVEE  fHERE BEREBA ATEEHRMES
Asset
Property, plant and HK$69,150,000 Depreciated replacement  Estimated costs of construction ~ Assuming other factors remain
equipment cost approach of similar type of industrial unchanged, the higher the
— Properties included in premises with adjustment on estimated cost of construction,
land and building: age, condition, utility, etc. the higher the fair value. If the
Industrial outside estimated cost of construction was
Hong Kong increased/decreased by 5%, the
fair value of the factories building
would be 5% higher/lower.
-3
ERY T 69,150,000 HEEENAA BRIENEEEE 1 Rk BRECRZRAXE  Beft
-WEeEETHRET e AR DN BERA  BRZATEME- ZID
FARNIER SRR A E I/ H5%
BNz ATRELRERR/P ﬂt
5% °
Valuation processes of the Group SEMEERRF

The Group has a team headed by directors reviewing estimation
of fair value of the properties. Fair values of the properties are
estimated by the independent professional qualified valuers on
an annual basis. Discussions of the valuation process and results
with the directors and the Audit Committee are held twice a year,
for the Group’s interim and annual reporting.

REEMEZ AT EERHESFREN
NNERE - ZEWMEZ N TEESFH
B BEAERMAEMTE - AERF
MERNSFMANEB NI NFE
WMEREENEZEZE S ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, accrued liabilities and other payables and derivative
financial instruments, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s funding policy uses short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing
debts over one year or internal generated resources to finance its
capital investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest
rates and the use of fixed rate interest-bearing debts over one
year will only be considered for capital investments and under
favourable market conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings).

AM. BERREEEERBER

AEBZIZERTABRERRRITR
HitEE - ARRE REMER - ZF
THMTAZTIEEMNERASEZES
KES - AEENASZHERNEEE
EZHMEREERAE - HIEKER
BERERE - ANFOR - ke REMER
R - EAERIE - BRFREREMENS
PERITESRIA -

AEBEMTASRZ TZRABAH X
Rk - SNERR - FERRMABES
R - EEEEHRAEEEZSRR
LB BRI o

RSN

MRz REEHERE

AEENE S BOREAEBEREHIR
HEBFBEE AT R L —FLA LR
MEERAAMHNEREREERNKRE -
AEEERDULBFRIEEE - —FN
FHEXRGERERRSEANNTS K
T T EBIERERKE

A TRIERTNEMBEBRTIZE - M
MERAEHRNEERBZBERT - A&
BB RE M CERF BN RERTE)
Z BT
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BE_Z-NF+_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. BBEREEEERBEK®E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) FZERR(E)
Group
£H
2014 2013
—E2-mF —T=F
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in increase in
Increase/  profit after Increase/ profit after
(decrease) in tax and (decrease) in tax and
basis points equity basis points equity
(H2) /% (i) /%
i/ (H2) BHER 0/ 0RD) BB K
Y BRBEA B RN
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10 (37,656) 10 (24,152)
Hong Kong dollar BT (10) 37,656 (10) 24,152
Foreign currency risk FhitE R B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures REEERSEERE - tRERIRE()
arise mainly from (i) the operating units in Hong Kong which HEBAEESURAEAERS kA
maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, their functional currency, HIge 8t BRAETEREE - ()E
but make sales in United States dollar. (i) the majority of the EhERELSERSHEMNR/ARKE -8
transactions of the operating units in the PRC are denominated BEREEBMNREFEZESNR -

in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced from Hong Kong
operating units.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the EE L AR B TEETES A&
United States dollar, the Group'’s exposure to USD foreign currency EmEETINERBREMN  REBE
risk is minimal. The Group tries to match its assets and liabilities AR HEEEENBBEAARE S
denominated in RMB. Details of the currency exposure of the HoZzrnHEBARZEERRF
forward currency contracts are included in note 27 to the financial 15 75 #% B8 P B 75 3 3K M 5127 o LA R
statements. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at RIBE RPN RE AR EA "5“%&1%?%?
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change BRNITEERPEEERIZZE

in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant ARBEXRTGEHIRSEBREH ZER
and excluding the effect of the forward currency contracts, of T REEBRBERTI(AEEEER
the Group's profit after tax (due to changes in the fair value of BENATEEHEZE) 2 IR E
monetary assets and liabilities). DA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

M. BERBREEBERBESE)

Foreign currency risk (continued) YNEE | B ()
Group
&8
2014 2013
—B-MF “E-=F
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase increase
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) after tax (decrease) after tax
Exposure in RMB rate  and equity Exposure  inRMBrate  and equity

(WD) m
2m/ (85) FRBLR

(B4)/ M
/() BB

Bl ARMEZ BR&ET Bl ARBEXR EREET
HK$ (%) HK$ HK$ (%) HK$
BT BT BT ou
If Hong Kong dollar weakens BRTRARESE
against Renminbi 2,287,337 5 (95,496) 3,273,669 5 (136,676)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens ~ &BTHARK®BE
against Renminbi 2,287,337 (5) 95,496 3,273,669 (5) 136,676
Credit risk EERR

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company
is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 35 to
the financial statements.

AEBEEZEEEAENE =FET
R5 o WRAKBEOBE - IAERHZIE
ERETRINES - BAKBREER
BERFE® HREE - AEEE
FEESRBRFRRGHNBER - MA
SEAZERERL TEK

AEEAMEREEREFENERR
B HEEREERRREAREEE
A R REMEEFIR  ELER
BENEARRRERARZHTELD
RARBASNELTANRESHE
ARBEAERR THBERMNSIBUE
AR - FIEE R BEHRMEISH

& o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. As at 31 December 2014, there
is a significant concentration of credit risk as 15% (2013: 15%)
of the balance representing a receivable from a single customer
(2013: single customer), which was derived from sales by the
precision parts and components segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative and derivative
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based
on the contractual undiscounted payments is as follows:

2014
—Z-mF
Within
1 year
Total oron
amount demand

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. M BEABEEEERBEE)

EERE(E)

ARAEBEEZEZ ERAREER
ENE=FETRD  MABEEIMK
SR EERREARE RHHEF
i RIEREE - R=F—WMF+=A
=t+—R8  AEEGFEEAEFEER
% A15.0% (T —=4F : 15.0%) 24
HBRRERBETHBHEINN—BER(Z
T—=F: —BEF)ZHKHE -

BRAASERAREWERE M EERTEEE
ERENE—FPEEERTIF BN
AR MIFE23 ©

REE SRR

REERIRE HRART LRI E A RE
EAEZETERTESRMBENT :

Group
£
2013
—2=F
In the In the
2" to Within 1 2 to
5t years Total  year or on 5% years
inclusive amount demand inclusive
-7 H-=
FRE EREF
(BfEER —£Rg (BFEER
W) Faes] BEX ME)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B oy oy oy

—FR5
“E REX
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-derivative: 4R :
Trade payables FERERE 43,998,205 43,998,205
Financial liabilities included in B EREFEER
accrued liabilities and HitERTUE

- 48,497,085 48,497,085 =

other payables (note 26) SRaRE(MET26) 11,366,321 11,366,321 - 691108 6,911,086 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings %2 E1TEE 19,779,235 19,779,235 - 27,233,239 27,233,239 -
Other borrowings HifgE 29,920,136 9,946,632 19,973,504 4,636,368 2,866,356 1,770,012

Derivative; TR
Derivative financial instrument ~ #T£&@IA 256,447 256,447 - - _ _
105,320,344 85,346,840 19,973,504 87,277,778 85,507,766 1,770,012
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T-—NFE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES M. BEEREEEERBER &)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company provided
guarantees to banks and other financial institution in connection
with facilities granted to subsidiaries repayable on demand of
approximately HK$45,723,000 and HK$26,368,000, respectively.

Included in the contractual undiscounted payments of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings is an amount of HK$5,418,580
(2013: HK$8,017,964) of which the loan agreements contain a
repayment-on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call in the loans at any time.

Notwithstanding the repayment-on-demand clause, the directors
consider that these loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation
was made considering: the financial position of the Group at
the date of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s
compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of default,
and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of the loans,
the contractual undiscounted payments at 31 December 2014
are set out in the above maturity profile.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013.

REBEERREE)

RZE—NFR-_FT—=F+-A=+
— A - ARRARIT R E M IS HEER
FHEBHBRRKEEREZNER
=B &R B4 A45,723,000% 7T &
26,368,000/ 7T °

EEBRITREMEE ZELHRITEN
X E PR 4 %E5,418,5808 T (— T — =
F :8,017,964B L) MEF BB E
RATEE EWN R ER AT RER 25k
EEERMNIER °

BAF FIIRERKEEENK  EFZRE
HZEE R RERIBRATE RN B X
5 - BRAA EEETEER « AEBRAL
ENMBRERE B 2B KE
B2 ETERNZE  AEEAERS
H: RAEE—EREFRBZEAEMNE
I NETEER - HRBRERBEOIE
H o RZE—FE+ZA=1T—HBMNUET
HRITRAR D EER A ERIEE 2o
T o

EXER
AEEEREANEZBBRRREAE
BAFEK LN M RFIRENEARLL
R PXEEEBERIRETRRE
fg o

AEEEHERBLCERESCEEHEARN
REWHEEN AR - BEFIARE
R AEBSERARINTREDN
MR E A - BBEATRENKETH
5 o NEBNFE ZBRERINBAIH 0
BARER -RNEE_ZT—NE+_A=
+—Ak=FT—=F+=-A=+—HIL
FERN EABTEALNEE  BERK
BRI E LT E) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T-—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

A. BERREEEERBEE)

EXREE(E)

AEBERBEAABLRERHEERE
o BRIMEEFERARERINFERAE
ZHBMHE - ARFEBEHFERITR
HMtEE  BAKRE  BfRERE
RN FIR - YHNBERERASEFER
B - BABBEARBHEE AMGRES -
RmERRZERABELRDT

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
payables, accrued liabilities and other payables less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the ends of the reporting
periods were as follows:

Group
55

2014 2013

—E—F T =%

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings # BR1T M EMEE 47,356,292 30,789,192
Trade payables FETRRIR 43,998,205 48,497,085
Accrued liabilities and other payables e B E R E MR FIE 51,138,294 48,106,038
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W REeEMReEFEER (35,305,971) (55,645,830)

Net debt BIEFE 107,186,820 71,746,485

Total equity et A EE 252,235,040 254,966,618

Total capital and net debt BERNFEE 359,421,860 326,713,103

Gearing ratio BERBELE 30% 22%
42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42. Lh BT

BEAFEEH —BENER  KN=F
— =%+ -_A=+—HBEEEEMNXK
I B REMEWRIEZ RS REM
FEUSZRIET7,847, 16658 T ( —T——4F :
7,096,921 BT EEFHBEEFENA °
HEFI 2 2R TFEEE I IER
MHE - EEF BN EFERER 2B
kR« EESIRETE o

| R 2L

BExet T -hAF=A_tWA#H
R RETIEM BREK

Conforming to current year's presentation, deposits and other
receivables of HK$7,847,166 at 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$7,096,921) that was included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables has been reclassified under inventories. The
revised presentation reflects more appropriately the nature of this
item. The reclassification has no effect on the reported financial
position, results or cash flows of the Group.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 24 March 2015.
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Five Year Financial Summary

BE-T-—NME+-_A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ~ LA TN AXREENBE RN BERE 2 £4 -

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited ~ BEREEME « 1575 E & A &% 01
financial statements, is set out below. TR ©

RESULTS E7

Year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=+—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NE —T—=F —FT—-—F —T——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FH&IT T FATT

REVENUE A 465,277 419,520 406,872 413,839 384,639
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FR A Al ) 11,552 23,695 30,322 29,550 32,386
Tax IR (1,029) 2,330 (4,074) (3,792) (7,207)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE AKRAaHEAR APTE

TO OWNERS OF THE A i F
COMPANY 10,523 26,025 26,248 25,758 25,179
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
31 December
+=A=+—8
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE —T—=F —FT——F —FT——F —T-ITF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FH&IT FHET FHETT
Total assets BEE 410,579 399,986 344,478 307,112 303,748
Total liabilities BEE (158,344)  (145,019)  (112,723)  (104,241)  (117,666)

252,235 254,967 231,755 202,871 186,082
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